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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good morning. Let

          3  me perhaps begin by introducing the members that are

          4  here, and let me also say that there are other

          5  committees going on. In the Committee Room I think

          6  it is Land Use, so you will see members come and go,

          7  and it is not being disrespectful, some of them may

          8  be on more than one Committee. However, I would ask

          9  my colleagues that if they go to another Committee,

         10  that they would let me know, because we will be

         11  voting on this bill today, and so I need those five

         12  votes.

         13                 Starting with my left, Council Member

         14  Pedro Espada from the Bronx, and my right, the

         15  ranking minority member of this Committee, Council

         16  Member Jim Oddo, from Staten Island, and Council

         17  Member Victor Robles, and I am privileged to be

         18  Chair, and I am from Brooklyn.

         19                 Good morning, and welcome to the

         20  Health Committee's hearing on proposed Intro. No.

         21  864. This law will require that any government

         22  corporation operating health facilities and

         23  providing health and medical services that is funded

         24  in full or in part by the City of New York use peace

         25  officers to perform the duties of special office,
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          2  senior special officer and hospital security

          3  officer. Currently HHC hospitals are policed by

          4  special officers with peace officer status.

          5                 As such, they have the legal

          6  authority to arrest, seize arms and issue summonses.

          7                 After sitting through oversight

          8  hearings on HHC, HHC's intention to privatize

          9  security services at its facilities, it became clear

         10  to the members of this Committee and the Council

         11  that the role these peace officers play in

         12  maintaining the health and safety of HHC patients,

         13  staff and visitors is indispensable.

         14                 We have heard about incidences

         15  occurring in HHC facilities over the years, such as

         16  sexual assaults, attempted escape of prisoners,

         17  robbery and possession of narcotics.

         18                 HHC police have been there to arrest

         19  the perpetrators of these incidents. We also saw

         20  pictures of hundreds upon hundreds of weapons

         21  brought into HHC facilities, frequently for the

         22  purposes of harming a patient or a staff member of

         23  the hospital. Again, HHC officers have been there to

         24  confiscate these weapons.

         25                 HHC police officers have been able to
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          2  make these arrests and to confiscate these weapons

          3  only because they are a professional body of law

          4  enforcers with proper training.

          5                 HHC police are peace officers, and

          6  are authorized by the State to make arrests and to

          7  perform searches without a warrant, to seize weapons

          8  and to use fiscal force where necessary.

          9                 This is a dangerous job. In February

         10  1999, Sergeant J. Lowe of the HHC police died at

         11  Woodhull Hospital in my district where he worked

         12  after having been kicked in the chest by a patient

         13  he was trying to calm down so that he could take his

         14  medicine. And even though tragedies like this go on,

         15  HHC is planning to replace these peace officers with

         16  security guards who do not have the same powers or

         17  training as peace officers.

         18                 It is the belief of this Committee

         19  that this "changing of the guard" will do nothing

         20  but compromise the health and safety of these

         21  patients, visitors and staff personnel at the Health

         22  and Hospitals Corporation hospitals.

         23                 For this reason, the Speaker and I

         24  introduced legislation that would require that HHC

         25  use peace officers to perform the duties of special
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          2  officer, senior officer and hospital security

          3  officer.

          4                 Under this legislation, the Health

          5  and Hospitals Corporation would be required to use

          6  peace officers to perform the duties of special

          7  officers, senior special officers and hospital

          8  security officers.

          9                 The Commissioner of Health will be

         10  responsible for enforcing this law.

         11                 This law would also create a cause of

         12  action for damages or injunction relief for anyone

         13  who suffers a violation from this law.

         14                 Before I call on our first witness

         15  and very distinguished person, let me just perhaps,

         16  since this is a very important issue, and let me

         17  just say that in terms of the bill, that currently

         18  there is about 25 to 26 members who have already

         19  signed on in support of this bill, and there are

         20  sponsors, along with the Speaker and myself, and I

         21  would like to call upon my colleagues. I know that I

         22  see Pedro Espada's name on the bill, if he would

         23  like to make a remark before we proceed on this

         24  bill.

         25                 Council Member Espada.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Thank you so

          3  much, Mr. Chair.

          4                 I would like to commend Local 237 for

          5  their efforts on this. I think, I am trying to go

          6  back in my head, it is several months ago that they

          7  came to me in the Bronx and asked them to stand with

          8  me at Jacobi Hospital, when they had one of their

          9  first press conferences on this issue and we still,

         10  along with Bronx 12, and no one else paying

         11  attention to us on this issue, and today we have

         12  legislation that can achieve the goals that you all

         13  have sought out for, and, quite frankly, the message

         14  was brought to us, not only by you, but the solution

         15  as well, as your President Carl Hayes, came before

         16  us and told us find a way to introduce legislation,

         17  you have the ability, look for it, and we did that,

         18  and we thank you so much for your vigilance on this

         19  issue. And I would like to thank all of your

         20  members, as I have looked around and I have seen

         21  faces of familiarity on almost every single hearing

         22  that we have had on this issue, and with my visits

         23  to the different hospitals in the City, thank you

         24  all very much for what you have done, and hopefully

         25  we will have a good hearing today and a positive
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          2  vote.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

          5  Oddo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 If there are 25 names or 26 names,

          9  make it 27, and please add my name as a sponsor of

         10  the bill and I will just reiterate what I have said

         11  at previous hearings, and that, you know, as the

         12  Republican member on the Committee, I really don't

         13  see this issue as one of being for privatization or

         14  anti-privatization, to me it has been an issue of

         15  public safety, and the proponents in this City, and

         16  I include myself in that, for privatization, have

         17  always made the distinction between core services

         18  and non-core services, essential services and

         19  services that we don't deem as inherent in the role

         20  of City government or government per se. We have

         21  always agreed and we have always concluded that

         22  public safety is one of the primary missions of

         23  government.

         24                 I come from a borough that has one

         25  HHC facility, Seaview Hospital, but on that campus
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          2  there are many different groups that call that

          3  campus home, and I want to ensure the safety of the

          4  people who visit Seaview Hospital, I want to ensure

          5  the safety of the folks that work there. So, I am

          6  proud to add my name as a sponsor, Mr. Chairman.

          7  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: We have also been

          9  joined by Council Member Una Clarke, who is the

         10  Chair of the Subcommittee on Mental Health, Mental

         11  Retardation and Alcoholism Services of this

         12  Committee, and also we have been joined by another

         13  sponsor of the bill, Council Member Quinn.

         14                 So, let me begin with calling upon

         15  Council Member Clarke.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chairman. And as I whispered to you, I have a 10:30,

         18  but I did not want to miss the opportunity of being

         19  here as a prime sponsor.

         20                 For me the issue of public safety,

         21  public hospital, privatization of any services

         22  within the hospital that we think is within the

         23  public purview has to be protected, but when it

         24  comes to the peace officers in the hospital, I

         25  recognize it is not an easy job, and you cannot get
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          2  a security guard who, when the going gets rough,

          3  will run away from the job. We want persons there

          4  that can be accountable and responsible to those of

          5  us who make sure that there is always health care

          6  available for those who need it in communities where

          7  otherwise without public hospital and those who we

          8  see as essential to the delivery of that care, and I

          9  see the officers there, as essential to the delivery

         10  of health care in a hospital, and that is why I am

         11  pleased and proud to join in being a sponsor of this

         12  legislation, and if I leave you know that my vote is

         13  aye, because that is what it is going to be when you

         14  call for the vote.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: However, if you

         16  leave, even though it is aye, I suggest you come

         17  back because it won't count. I know we are trying to

         18  do a lot of things in election year, but that is one

         19  thing we have not reformed yet, we don't have proxy

         20  votes.

         21                 Council Member Quinn.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you. I,

         23  too, might be in and out, because I am also very

         24  excited, I was recently made a member of the Land

         25  Use Committee, so I might have to go in there to
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          2  vote on billboards.

          3                 So, I just want to say, and thank you

          4  for the opportunity, that I was thrilled to see this

          5  bill introduced at the last Stated Council Meeting,

          6  and I knew immediately that this was probably the

          7  right bill, exactly what we wanted, to make sure we

          8  protected this service, because I saw Victor's name

          9  on it. But just to doublecheck, I called Pat and she

         10  said, yes, that is our bill, so I put my name on it.

         11                 I really am very proud of the Council

         12  and this Committee today to be passing this

         13  legislation, both as it relates to peace officers,

         14  but I think really even more importantly as it

         15  relates to services for poor people in this City. I

         16  think we are sending a message to this Mayor and all

         17  future Mayors, that you can't just eliminate

         18  services at a whim, you can't reduce care at a whim,

         19  that there is a basic standard of medical care that

         20  people do because they are residents of New York

         21  City and because they are Americans and they live in

         22  this country, and whether they don't, if they don't

         23  have insurance and go to City hospitals, that

         24  doesn't take that away, and that standard should be

         25  held high. And I think the peace officers are as
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          2  important in hospitals as are doctors. Because if

          3  you are not safe and protected, then how could you

          4  possibly get well. And we have seen tragically in

          5  this world what can happen on the streets and in our

          6  hospitals.

          7                 And, also, I would just say finally

          8  that I would always stand with the peace officers in

          9  this because you couldn't pay me enough money to do

         10  your job. If someone came running in the emergency

         11  room and they were mentally disturbed and agitated

         12  and dangerous, I would hide. You know, it kind of

         13  sounds funny in a way, but I would. I couldn't

         14  imagine doing that.

         15                 But I also want to know if I am in an

         16  ER, or a family member is in an ER and they are in a

         17  room being taken care of, I don't want to have to

         18  worry that there is someone like me out there

         19  protecting my family member or myself.

         20                 So, I am very proud to sponsor this

         21  and want to really thank you for what you do for all

         22  of my constituents and for the City as a whole.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

         24  Council Member.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Mr. Chairman,
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          2  may I ask that the vote be left open for me so I can

          3  do this double journey here?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me say that I

          5  look forward to your return, and if by the time we

          6  are ready to vote you are not here, by all means, I

          7  will give you enough time to vote, remembering that

          8  after a half hour I am closing the vote.

          9                 Let me say just one more thing before

         10  I call the distinguished president of the union. Let

         11  me go on record, because the Council did invite the

         12  Administration, both President Luis Marcos, the

         13  President of the Health and Hospitals Corporation,

         14  to come and testify before this Committee, since

         15  they are proposing to privatize their services, and

         16  we also extended an invitation to Commissioner Neal

         17  Cohen. In fairness to Commissioner Neal Cohen, he

         18  and I spoke. He is on vacation this week, which is

         19  the first time he has gone on vacation, I

         20  understand, in three or four years. However, as you

         21  can see, neither one will be here this morning.

         22                 I have been handed by the

         23  Administration, from the Mayor's Office of City

         24  Legislative Affairs, a memorandum in opposition to

         25  this bill, and basically what it says that they are
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          2  alleging that we do not have the jurisdiction over

          3  this to pass this legislation. My distinguished

          4  colleague that the Speaker places a lot of trust in,

          5  our General Counsel, and Counsel to the Speaker,

          6  Richard Weinberg, and company, and all the other

          7  lawyers, I believe that their position says that we

          8  do have the right to pass this legislation, that is

          9  why we introduced it. I know that there will be

         10  testimony, and I know that he has been working with

         11  another distinguished colleague within the law

         12  profession that would dispute that.

         13                 So, for the record, the

         14  Administration is in opposition to this bill. Let's

         15  move forward.

         16                 Let us begin with the person who

         17  first came to me with this issue and sat with me,

         18  and I urge him to reach out to the Speaker and then

         19  we had numerous meetings. The distinguished

         20  president of the Teamsters Local 237, Carl Haynes.

         21                 Mr. President, for the record, would

         22  you once again identify yourself for the record, and

         23  let me just say to all those who are testifying, we

         24  have gotten so modern that we don't have

         25  stenographers any longer, we now have everything by
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          2  machine, so I urge you to, one, if you see the red

          3  button on, that means you are not on. So, push the

          4  red button and bring the mike close to you, so that

          5  just like you can hear me, we can pick it up on the

          6  tape machine.

          7                 Good morning, sir, and welcome once

          8  again before this Committee. It seems that it is

          9  becoming a, I don't want to say a daily appearance,

         10  but I always love to see you, sir, so good morning.

         11                 MR. HAYNES: Good morning, Chairman

         12  Robles, and members of the Committee. Thank you very

         13  much for the opportunity to testify.

         14                 I am Carl Haynes, President of

         15  Teamsters Local 237. Local 237 represents all 850

         16  peace officers currently stationed in New York

         17  City's public hospitals.

         18                 I am here today to voice my strong

         19  support for intro. 864. The enactment of this

         20  legislation will mandate that all hospital police

         21  employed by the Health and Hospitals Corporation

         22  enjoy a peace officer status. We believe this

         23  measure will serve two vital functions:

         24                 First, it will ensure the safety of

         25  everyone who enters the public hospitals.
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          2                 Second, it will effectively combat

          3  HHC's attempt to privatize the hospital police

          4  force.

          5                 My testimony will focus on the issue

          6  of safety, because that must be our primary concern.

          7  Patients entering public hospitals are, more often

          8  than not, under the intense physical and emotional

          9  stress of injury or illness.

         10                 They deserve the right to a safe and

         11  speedy recovery, family members, friends and other

         12  visitors are often distraught about loved one's

         13  medical crisis. They deserve the right to feel they

         14  are, as their relatives, well protected in public

         15  hospitals.

         16                 Sworn peace officers have the

         17  training, experience and judgment needed to maintain

         18  order within the hospitals under very difficult

         19  circumstances. They also have the legal capacity,

         20  indeed the responsibility, to immediately stop

         21  crime, confiscate illegal weapons, issue summonses

         22  and make arrests.

         23                 This authority makes it possible for

         24  them to protect patients, visitors and doctors

         25  inside the hospital without waiting for the
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          2  involvement of the Police Department. Private

          3  security guards are civilians, with no such

          4  authority or responsibility.

          5                 In nearly a three-year period from

          6  January the 1st, 1998, to November 21st, 2000,

          7  hospital police officers reported 1,686 instances in

          8  which they had to engage in felony arrests,

          9  misdemeanor arrests and other criminal summonses.

         10                 In addition to these actions, our HHC

         11  police guard and escort felons and prisoners in need

         12  of hospital care. As you no doubt know, hospitals

         13  contain large amounts of controlled substances and

         14  expensive equipment. Do we want those drugs to be

         15  kept secure by sworn peace officers, or would we

         16  rather make them the responsibility of the private

         17  Corporation and its private security guards?

         18                 The same goes for money. Our HHC

         19  police frequently escort large amounts of cash or

         20  payroll and other uses, do we think that should be

         21  the responsibility of the private company?

         22                 The job of peace officers is not

         23  simply to guard or watch the hospital patients. Our

         24  HHC police operate like any other police force.

         25  They actively insert themselves into difficult,
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          2  often potentially violent situations, in order to

          3  keep the peace. That is what a peace officer does.

          4                 The proposed privatization of

          5  hospital police will replace the active and

          6  effective force with a passive and ineffective one.

          7  We need to look further than HRA to see what havoc

          8  will occur if our HHC police officers are

          9  privatized.

         10                 On January the 28th, the Daily News

         11  described a "rising tide of mayhem" at the City's

         12  job/income support centers. Major incidents of

         13  violence, including assaults, thefts, sexual abuse

         14  and even one homicide had increased by 29.5 percent

         15  during the first nine months of 2000, compared to

         16  the same period in 1999. "All caseworkers agree that

         17  security in these centers is deplorable," the News

         18  reported. "Private, unarmed guards patrol each

         19  waiting room, but many workers say the guards refuse

         20  to step into a brawl unless one of their own is

         21  attacked." Not surprisingly, organizers representing

         22  the medical staff at HHC and the Civilian Advisory

         23  Boards to HHC all have voiced fears about reduced

         24  safety at our public hospitals if HHC's

         25  privatization scheme goes through.
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          2                 Private security guards will not be

          3  peace officers. Therefore, they will not be able to

          4  effectively prevent crime. They cannot guard

          5  prisoners. They cannot make arrests. And they will

          6  surely avoid potentially violent situations. Do we

          7  really believe that a private corporation will want

          8  their employees to engage in any situation where the

          9  company would be sued for large amounts of money, or

         10  held liable for injuries? If a private security

         11  guard observes someone committing a crime, they will

         12  pick up the telephone and dial 911.

         13                 NYPD police officers will then be

         14  dispatched to the hospitals to carry out a duty that

         15  our Local 237 HHC police officers now perform on a

         16  daily basis. This costs time and money. It also

         17  prevents the NYPD from effectively doing their job

         18  out on the street.

         19                 No one contests the high level of

         20  security that current HHC police officers provide.

         21  In fact, at your last hearing in this matter,

         22  Council Member Reed forced President Marcos to admit

         23  that it was the work of the HHC police officers that

         24  led to a 35 percent reduction of crime in the City

         25  hospital system since 1995.
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          2                 The sole stated purpose for

          3  privatizing hospitals security force is for HHC to

          4  save money. In fact, there is a savings, and I

          5  strongly contest that premise, is saving little

          6  money worth putting patients, friends and family

          7  members and community residents at risk?

          8                 My answer to that question is no. We

          9  need Intro. 864 to protect the hospitals, as well as

         10  our jobs.

         11                 I will be happy to answer any

         12  questions you might have at this time, and thank

         13  you, Mr. Chairman, for the opportunity to testify.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, Mr.

         15  President, let me just personally thank you,

         16  because, again, you and I met, I forget, last year,

         17  and I made recommendations, and I must tell you that

         18  in following through on those recommendations this

         19  is why we are here today, and I want to personally,

         20  on behalf of the Speaker and all of my colleagues,

         21  thank you for this partnership. Many of us on this

         22  end believe exactly the way you do, and that is why

         23  we are prepared to move forward.

         24                 Before I perhaps open up for

         25  questions, unless the gentleman next to you wants to
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          2  make some facts know, I want to perhaps allow,

          3  because this is about not only having 26 votes, of

          4  course 25 votes in this Committee, and I want to

          5  remind my colleagues who are members of this

          6  Committee that we will be voting this bill out

          7  today. We will be voting on this bill today, whether

          8  up or down.

          9                 Second, I want to give those members

         10  who are not members of this Committee, but are prime

         11  sponsors, because after this Committee we need 26

         12  votes; however, we really are looking forward to 34

         13  votes, because we never know what the future holds.

         14                 So, having said that I think it is

         15  very important that we pause for a minute and allow

         16  for my colleagues, who will eventually, if they are

         17  not a member of this Committee, some of us are very

         18  fortunate because we will get two licks, we will

         19  vote today and we will vote tomorrow, some of them

         20  will vote tomorrow. However, a prime sponsor, on the

         21  bill, Council Member Steve DiBrienza, from Brooklyn,

         22  that I have had the privilege of working with, and

         23  because he is from Brooklyn, more so on borough

         24  issues, but has always been there on all of the

         25  issues. And because you mentioned HRA, as you know,
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          2  we piggy-back, because it is his Committee, the

          3  General Welfare Committee, who really oversees the

          4  Human Resources Administration, but we work together

          5  when it comes to health issues.

          6                 So, let me call upon Council Member

          7  DiBrienza, if he has any remarks to make.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chairman. I will be brief. It is always

         10  impressive to see the energy that you bring to this

         11  Committee, to the citizens of our City, no matter

         12  what neighborhood or borough they are in, benefit

         13  from your leadership of the Health Committee, and

         14  the working men and women of this City, and the

         15  unions that represent them in this case of Local

         16  237, should understand that we stand against an

         17  assault. It is the mission of this Administration

         18  very often when it comes to the working men and

         19  women of this City, to demonize, to downsize, and

         20  ultimately to try to privatize, that is what they

         21  are about. And, so, when we recognize, because our

         22  constituents, the Council Member's constituents, all

         23  of our constituents, are in those City hospitals

         24  that you so well serve and protect, then they are in

         25  our neighborhoods, and in our districts, in real
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          2  parts of this City that work and live and struggle,

          3  that when we sit here today, and tomorrow I hope,

          4  after this Committee acts, and vote to protect the

          5  people of our City who use these public hospitals,

          6  and by way of requiring the guards to be peace

          7  officers, we do a good thing for so many in this

          8  City that this Administration leaves out. So, it's

          9  important for us, it's important for me to see you

         10  work, Mr. Chairman, to hear the President of Local

         11  237, and to see the men and women who protect so

         12  many of our constituents on every corner of this

         13  City. I look forward after this Committee in the

         14  full Council as a prime sponsor, and I thank you for

         15  the opportunity to say those words.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

         17  Council Member DiBrienza.

         18                 I believe that one, well, there have

         19  been numerous, but I was not in the City and I

         20  believe that there was a group of hospital police

         21  officers, if I remember correctly I think it was

         22  called by the Latino officers, and the one person,

         23  when I came back to the City, especially that night

         24  on television who was really there leading the

         25  charge, is someone that when she first got elected
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          2  to this body most, if not all, were prewarned, and

          3  yet ever since she has come here, I have nothing but

          4  the highest respect and admiration for her. As you

          5  can see, she is one of the prime sponsors, and, so,

          6  I do not want to take anything away from her,

          7  especially because I am chairman of this Committee,

          8  and the fact that this bill was introduced by the

          9  Speaker and myself, because she began.

         10                 I also, as he is walking in the

         11  Chamber besides her, is another person, and he is

         12  here, I will call upon him also, however, Council

         13  Member Margarita Lopez is one of those who from the

         14  beginning, and, so I would like to call upon,

         15  although not a member of this Committee, but I know

         16  that tomorrow she will join me on the floor of this

         17  body to argue why this bill is good and why we

         18  should vote to move it forward. Council Member

         19  Lopez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Mr. Chairman, I

         21  appreciate the opportunity that you are giving to

         22  me, particularly since I don't have the fortune to

         23  be a part of this Committee, and one more time the

         24  Chairman of this Committee is doing the right thing,

         25  and so far you have not done anything wrong in the
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          2  years that I know you in this Council, then one more

          3  time here we are, of supporting and doing something

          4  that is absolutely right.

          5                 I want to share with you one little

          6  point. I don't know how many of you know that I am a

          7  psychiatric social worker, and before I came to the

          8  Council I used to work in Central Park, a mobile

          9  unit working with homeless, severe mentally ill. And

         10  due to that job that I had, I had great interaction

         11  with Bellevue Hospital, Metropolitan Hospital,

         12  Harlem Hospital, in the psychiatric units, and I

         13  know as a fact the importance of the police officers

         14  inside of every one of the public hospitals in our

         15  City. I don't know this by somebody telling me, I

         16  know this by experience, by escorting clients to

         17  those hospitals during those years, 12 years of my

         18  life that were extremely psychotic many times, and

         19  were it not by the police officers inside of every

         20  one of those hospitals that I told you, I would have

         21  not been feeling comfortable escorting my clients

         22  there for their safety and the safety of the people

         23  who work in those hospitals.

         24                 I know the dynamics that this police

         25  system inside of the hospital play in regard of
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          2  health care, and I am absolutely mystified by Mr.

          3  Marcos, who at the time that I am telling you about

          4  was part of a mobile unit called Project Help, and

          5  he of all people should know how important this

          6  police force is inside of the public hospital. I

          7  don't comprehend from where he is coming, but you

          8  better believe I am going to vote for this bill, you

          9  better believe I am going to argue in favor of it,

         10  and we are going to pass it.

         11                 Mr. Chairman, keep the faith alive,

         12  we are going to pass this bill for each and every

         13  one for the safety of New Yorkers in New York City.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me also say

         16  we have been joined by other members of this

         17  Committee, because they are important and I need

         18  them today, not tomorrow. We have been joined by a

         19  new member of our Committee, distinguished chair of

         20  the Public Safety Committee, which I am glad he is

         21  also on this Committee because he deals with law

         22  enforcement every day, Council Member Sheldon

         23  Leffler, from Queens.

         24                 We have also been joined -- and if

         25  you look at the present testimony, you should glance
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          2  through it because your name is in there so you can

          3  keep it -- however, a member of this Committee,

          4  Council Member Phil Reed from Manhattan.

          5                 I also wanted to acknowledge somebody

          6  that, with a history, who came to me and really

          7  nudged me. And you know, where I come from that word

          8  "nudge" means was constantly on my case. But I

          9  remember not too long ago we had a similar situation

         10  about hospital police and weapons and there was a

         11  pilot program that was implemented by HHC, and it

         12  was over four years and they were still studying it,

         13  and the person who really joined with you and came

         14  to me had been one of those who had been there from

         15  the beginning, is the Deputy Majority Leader of the

         16  Council, Council Member Archie Spigner from Queens.

         17  So, I wanted to also acknowledge his work.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you,

         19  Mr. Chairman. Still in support.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: All right.

         21                 Before I call on members, what we

         22  did, and I think it is very important, and so those

         23  members that came in late, again, folks, remember

         24  there are other meetings going on. We will be voting

         25  on this bill today, so, please, members of the
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          2  Committee, we are going to vote. I also had said to

          3  the president, to those in the audience, it is very

          4  important that we allow, especially those of us who

          5  will be voting today, like Phil Reed and Sheldon, in

          6  case you have any statement you want to make for the

          7  record, let's do that now.

          8                 Sheldon, would you? Council Member

          9  Leffler from Queens.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 Some of you may recall --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Your mike is not

         14  on, Sheldon.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: Some of you

         16  may recall that the Public Safety Committee of the

         17  Council had an essentially similar hearing to this a

         18  couple of years ago, and ever since that time I felt

         19  that there were special responsibilities for

         20  policing the hospitals that comprise the Health and

         21  Hospitals Corporation, and while there may be

         22  legitimate arguments for privatization in certain

         23  circumstances, those people who secure our hospitals

         24  need to have certain specific training and

         25  familiarity with the environment, and it seems to me
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          2  that it is not sensible to take the risk to get a

          3  whole new security force in the hospital.

          4                 So, I think that this legislation

          5  makes sense, I thought so for years, and I will vote

          6  for it. Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

          8  Council member.

          9                 And, again, I welcome you as a member

         10  of this Committee.

         11                 Someone who is not a member of this

         12  Committee, but is sitting on my left, it is

         13  important to understand why it is important these

         14  Council members are allowed to speak, because the

         15  issue is important, if you are doing something right

         16  don't forget your power.

         17                 Second, while they may not be members

         18  of this Committee, believe me, this Committee will

         19  be voting out the bill. We need them tomorrow, we

         20  may need them for what the future holds, so please

         21  bear with me, I am allowing Council members to be on

         22  record. You understand that it is very important.

         23  Bear with me, Mr. President.

         24                 A person who was recently appointed

         25  by the Speaker, and voted by the Council as the new
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          2  Chair, and for those of you it is very important,

          3  because you will come before his committee with a

          4  lot of legislative, and among them I suggest you

          5  keep your fight to bear arms, you know? I know you

          6  have done that, and the Governor vetoes and his

          7  excuse was that there was a study, well, there is no

          8  study now, and somebody you really need to work with

          9  as you move forward to Albany for that bill, and

         10  then get a Home Rule Message, is the new Chair of

         11  the Council's Committee on State and Federal

         12  Legislation, Council Member Gifford Miller.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman.

         15                 Thank you, President Haynes, and

         16  thank you for this hearing. Mostly I want to

         17  compliment you, Mr. Chairman, for the swiftness with

         18  which the Council is responding to this very

         19  critical problem. I want to just take this moment to

         20  go on record, for some reason my name was not added

         21  to the list of sponsors on this legislation and I

         22  certainly intended to do so when it was introduced,

         23  and for whatever oversight that is, I hope that you

         24  will add my name as a sponsor to the legislation,

         25  because I feel very strongly that this is a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            32

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  critically important piece of legislation, and a

          3  timely response to yet another assault on the public

          4  hospital system by this Administration.

          5                 We absolutely have to have the best

          6  people protecting the employees, the patients and

          7  everybody who uses our wonderful public hospital

          8  system, and the last seven years have seen an

          9  administration which has either through neglect or

         10  direct assault attempted to dumb down to lower the

         11  level of care and really abandoned commitment to the

         12  public hospital system, and this is a critically

         13  important way for this Council to express once again

         14  that we will not allow this to happen. We stand with

         15  the employees of our public hospital system, we

         16  stand with the patients of our public hospital

         17  system, and we will not allow anyone to endanger

         18  them or to get anything less than the very best, so

         19  I very strongly support this legislation and look

         20  forward to voting for it when it comes to the full

         21  Council, and compliment you and the Speaker and

         22  everyone else involved in this effort in terms of

         23  their leadership and moving this swiftly so that we

         24  can address this immediately.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

          3  Council Member. And I have assured you that I have

          4  instructed my counsel to make sure that your name

          5  gets on this bill, and you will be swiftly added on,

          6  because we will be voting on it tomorrow.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: A prime sponsor

          9  who has joined us also, Council Member Freed.

         10  Kathryn Freed from Manhattan.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you very

         12  much, Mr. Chair, and I am glad that you are holding

         13  this hearing.

         14                 I just, again, want to go on the

         15  record as proud to be a prime sponsor of this, and I

         16  think it is so important, and it is almost sad, in

         17  sort of like the twilight of this Administration,

         18  they nevertheless seem to be striking out and trying

         19  to destroy unions throughout this City. They have

         20  done this in several other areas, and the fact that

         21  they are trying to get rid of the HHC police is

         22  another example of how little they care about the

         23  well-being of people in the City and certainly

         24  anyone who has to be in a hospital and the health

         25  and safety of not only people who are patients in
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          2  the hospital, but the staff and the doctors and the

          3  whole milieu in the hospitals. It is very clear that

          4  the HHC police have been doing a great job of

          5  protecting the safety of everyone and they are so

          6  necessary, and the idea that they would put

          7  something like maybe being able to spend a little

          8  less money to hire less trained, low paid, probably

          9  high turnover and certainly guards who would have no

         10  stake in really protecting the safety of people in

         11  hospitals or putting their lives on the line like

         12  the HHC police seem to do every day, just speaks to

         13  how little concern this Administration has for the

         14  people in the City, and really the good job that the

         15  HHC police have done over the years and how many

         16  people have really put their lives on the line and

         17  have made this their vocation.

         18                 So, I am thrilled to be a co-sponsor

         19  in this, and, of course, congratulate you, Mr.

         20  Chair, on this hearing and congratulate the union on

         21  the great work that they have done, and I am sure

         22  you will be successful and I am sure you know that

         23  all of us are behind you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you. I

         25  believe I have called upon all of the Council
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          2  Members.

          3                 Let me just say, because I know

          4  sitting next to you, Mr. President, Bruce Simon who

          5  has been at meetings with us, and I was very

          6  impressed with his legal expertise as we sat in a

          7  room and I learned a great deal and I refuse to

          8  practice without a license so I am going to let him

          9  perhaps -- I don't know if you have seen the

         10  Administration opposition of which is challenging

         11  our authority, so, Mr. President, rather than

         12  questions that we have had two previous, although

         13  not on the bill, but as we geared for privatization,

         14  I think that most of us, not all of us, had

         15  participated in those questions, and I think we know

         16  we would not be here and not have a bill before us

         17  if you did not convince us that we had to do

         18  something.

         19                 So, Mr. President, you are the

         20  president, so I yield to you, but, however, I

         21  believe if you would like to, at least for him to go

         22  on the record and introduce himself and perhaps

         23  discuss some of the legal challenges in terms of

         24  whether or not we have the right. So, Mr. President,

         25  I yield it back to you.
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          2                 MR. HAYNES: I agree with your wisdom

          3  on the situation, and I turn the mike over to our

          4  distinguished counsel.

          5                 MR. SIMON: On the other hand, if I

          6  may respectfully suggest, Mr. Chairman, I do have a

          7  statement to make, I am prepared to make it, unless

          8  there are specific questions at the moment, may I

          9  suggest that there are others in the room whose

         10  testimony I believe would be a useful predicate to

         11  mine.

         12                 So, with all respect, if you would

         13  defer my testimony until a couple of others have

         14  testified, it might --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just set

         16  the record for some of my colleagues, particularly

         17  those who are a member of the Committee, and I

         18  understand that we are ready to vote, simply because

         19  one of my colleagues, since Council Member Reed did

         20  point out, and he is correct, that we have had at

         21  least two previous hearings on the issue of

         22  privatization, and the reason why I am allowing for

         23  my colleagues to bear with me in terms of allowing

         24  testimony, is because we have a bill before us

         25  today, and so understand that if I allow people to
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          2  speak, it is because it's on the bill, not

          3  necessarily the hearings which were in the past. The

          4  past was about preparing ourselves of what was

          5  coming.

          6                 So, having said that, if you would

          7  like to, I would be more than happy to work with

          8  you. If you would like to use your time after some

          9  people testify, I would be more than delighted to

         10  accept that also.

         11                 MR. SIMON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: With the

         13  understanding we are going to call you back so you

         14  can read your testimony.

         15                 I understand we have Denis Hughes,

         16  who is the New York State AFL-CIO, representing the

         17  State. So, Mr. Hughes, again, would you identify

         18  yourself for the record and proceed, and I

         19  understand you need to do your statement and then

         20  also leave.

         21                 MR. HUGHES: Good morning, Mr.

         22  Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is Denis

         23  Hughes. I am President of the New York State

         24  AFL-CIO, and I am here today to testify in support

         25  of Intro. 864.
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          2                 Intro. 864 provides the opportunity

          3  to prevent the further erosion of well-paying union

          4  jobs through privatization, and we must seize it.

          5                 First and foremost, I oppose the

          6  privatization of the HHC police, because it is

          7  inherently wrong to substitute well-paying jobs with

          8  low-paying jobs.

          9                 Let us not be fooled, this is what

         10  privatization is all about. The Health and Hospitals

         11  Corporation currently employes a well-trained

         12  workforce, the dedicated members of Local 237, to

         13  protect our hospitals.

         14                 When HHC says it's contracting out to

         15  save money, what they are really saying is we don't

         16  want to pay a decent wage, a decent wage with decent

         17  benefits to a competent workforce. And let's be

         18  smart here, HHC will not save money, no matter what

         19  they say. The first lawsuit filed as a result of the

         20  action or inaction of the private for-profit company

         21  contractor to provide security will wipe away any

         22  so-called savings HHC is able to manipulate on

         23  paper. No, this is wage suppression, pure and

         24  simple.

         25                 This privatization effort is not only
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          2  morally wrong, it is also economically wrong-headed.

          3  It is generally acknowledged that middle-income

          4  population in New York City is shrinking.

          5                 The continued loss of well-paying

          6  jobs perpetuates this problem. It should not be the

          7  policy of the City of New York to engage in the type

          8  of wage suppression that contributes to this

          9  problem. Most of Local 237 HHC police officers live

         10  in New York City. They make a good wage, but not a

         11  exorbitant one. They pay their taxes to the City,

         12  they purchase homes in the City, and they do their

         13  commercial shopping in their communities.

         14                 Wage suppression and the continuing

         15  loss of middle-income jobs only exacerbates the

         16  problem of this middle-income population.

         17                 It is profoundly disturbing that

         18  these workers should be shoved aside whatever

         19  imagined savings the HHC thinks they will receive.

         20  Dedicated competent workers deserve decent-paying

         21  secure jobs.

         22                 To my knowledge, not only has HHC not

         23  criticized the performance of these workers, rather

         24  they have acknowledged that they are responsible for

         25  a significant drop in crime in the City hospitals
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          2  over the past five years.

          3                 The essence of Intro. 864 is to

          4  mandate the peace officer status necessary to

          5  continue this safe and secure operation of our City

          6  hospitals.

          7                 That it would coincidently protect

          8  these members' jobs is good for them, it is good for

          9  patients and other employees of the system, and good

         10  for the City.

         11                 The current HHC Police force,

         12  represented by Local 237, are well trained,

         13  extremely dedicated, and do their jobs well. Instead

         14  of being commended for the jobs they do, they are

         15  being threatened. I strongly urge you to pass Intro.

         16  864, not only because it would be beneficial to

         17  these brave police officers, but to all citizens of

         18  New York City.

         19                 I want to thank you for this

         20  opportunity to testify.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Mr. President,

         22  let me thank you on behalf of the Speaker, as a

         23  matter of fact he is here, so he will say it also,

         24  but on behalf of the Speaker and all of my

         25  colleagues, let me thank you for taking the time to
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          2  come and testify, and, so, I appreciate the fact

          3  that such a distinguished leader representing the

          4  State of New York, and you know what is so nice

          5  about this folks, because I have got to say, because

          6  I have been in this Council 17 years, and was in the

          7  Assembly six years, and when I first started out in

          8  politics, you respected unions, and lately somehow

          9  it is like he didn't exist. It is so good to see you

         10  all come back together as one family.

         11                 So, Mr. President, I want to

         12  personally thank you as Chairman of this Committee,

         13  because it only makes our job easier, so I want to

         14  thank you.

         15                 Let me take the time, since you are

         16  sitting there, Mr. President, and other leaders, let

         17  me -- usually when you watch the president come to

         18  present his state of the union, you have the

         19  Sergeant-At-Arms in the back and yells out Mr.

         20  Speaker I have the high privilege and have the high

         21  honor, let me tell you that I have the distinguished

         22  privilege and honor, not because of my position as

         23  Majority Whip or Chairman of this Committee, I must

         24  tell you that I came here 17 years ago when this was

         25  a body of 35 members, and no doubt, it was a rubber
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          2  stamp Council, and no disrespect to the late, may he

          3  rest in peace, from Brooklyn, Tom Cuite, but this

          4  Council was a rubber stamp. They felt that they were

          5  here to work for the Mayor. Ever since this

          6  individual became its leader, and because I came

          7  from a real legislative body called the Assembly, I

          8  must tell you that I have served under his

          9  leadership, and this Council has become a real

         10  leadership body. Let me also point out that four

         11  years ago when he called me into his office, and I

         12  was happy being Chairman of the Youth Services

         13  Committee, reaping (sic) like a band-aid, because we

         14  were getting money like crazy, he asked me and

         15  challenged me to take over.

         16                 Let me remind you, four years ago the

         17  health issue was not a priority nor was HHC or DOH

         18  or any of the health agencies mentioned in State of

         19  the City messages, either by the Mayor or by the

         20  Council.

         21                 I will tell you that this individual

         22  not only has challenged me, but has allowed me and

         23  it's not me, it's this Committee because of this

         24  leader. And last but not least, let me say that if

         25  anyone deserves, and let me remind you who is doing
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          2  things and not waiting until after they get elected

          3  but before, that has been the champion ever since,

          4  and that is hypocrisy sometimes in politics that I

          5  am sorry I have to say it not because he is here,

          6  but I am a lame duck.

          7                 But I keep reading about how this

          8  person twists arms -- well, let me tell you, right

          9  now we are in the middle of a difference of opinion

         10  and two issues I am reminded: In the past the Gay

         11  Rights Bill, that everybody said because he was a

         12  holy Catholic person, going to church every day and

         13  receiving communion, it would never happen. Well,

         14  let me tell you something, I was around when I voted

         15  for that Human Rights bill. And now recently, as you

         16  know, there is a little controversy about term

         17  limits, regardless of where you stand, but if this

         18  individual stopped us from moving forward, then why

         19  is it that there is a movement going on. Let me then

         20  introduce the real sponsor of this bill, and I know

         21  this bill is going to pass, and if the Mayor vetoes

         22  it we are going to override it, but I believe he has

         23  always said to me over and over, if it is right then

         24  you should do it, the Speaker of the Council, Peter

         25  Vallone.
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          2                 SPEAKER VALLONE: To assure you, that

          3  was totally unrehearsed, okay? Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chairperson. And Chairman of the Finance Committee,

          5  my colleagues that are here now, there is a

          6  misconception that this Council is opposed to

          7  privatization. That is not the case. For better than

          8  two decades that I am here, I have told each

          9  different Administration, just show us how it is

         10  better for the people we represent. Just show us how

         11  it is better for the people we represent. How is it

         12  better? Are they more qualified? Are they going to

         13  do a better job? Are they going to save the City

         14  money? Are they going to treat in this case people

         15  who need specialized care, in hospitals, are they

         16  going to treat them any better? Are they going to

         17  make them any safer? In every single situation, no

         18  one has ever been able to show this legislative body

         19  how privatization makes it somehow better for our

         20  people, how you can do it better for our own

         21  organized workforce.

         22                 In this particular case, you are

         23  talking about a very vulnerable population, you are

         24  talking about a population that needs and deserves

         25  security because they no longer can defend
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          2  themselves.

          3                 How is it better to turn this over to

          4  a profit-making enterprise where the training

          5  doesn't exist, where peace officer status is not

          6  even attainable?

          7                 So, I just had exactly the same

          8  discussion, I think you took my remarks because that

          9  is exactly what I just told the Mayor a little while

         10  ago in our last ditch effort to try to convince him

         11  that it is not necessary, that this is something

         12  that the Administration should share on their own.

         13  So, Health and Hospitals, as you know, is not under

         14  our direct control, but certain things are. We do

         15  have a separate law that says that the Mayor, any

         16  Mayor, wants to privatize any of our agencies, he or

         17  she has to do it publicly in an open hearing. What

         18  we are doing now, since this is not under direct

         19  City control, is to find a way where we can ensure

         20  at least that the population that we are trying to

         21  protect here, all of us, is protected the way we

         22  would want our own mothers and fathers and sisters

         23  and brothers to be protected. We are not talking

         24  about remote people here, we are talking about

         25  ourselves, really, and that is what we are supposed
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          2  to be, your representatives, as is every union

          3  member in this City supposed to be a representative

          4  and a public servant to do the best that he or she

          5  can, and for the people we all represent.

          6                 So, thank you, Mr. Chairman, I am

          7  leaving you in very, very good hands. As you know,

          8  we do have a couple of hearings on that are equally

          9  controversial that I will spend my time, but thank

         10  you very much for running a good committee, and I

         11  expect that before it is all over, as you said, we

         12  will do the right thing.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Speaker.

         16                 Let me acknowledge again someone who

         17  is from Brooklyn, we go back a long time, and he is

         18  important because he is the money man in this

         19  Council, the Chairman of the Finance Committee,

         20  Council Member Herb Berman, from Brooklyn.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: Wait, wait.

         22  Where do I make an application for equal time?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         24                 Mr. Berman, you have the floor.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: I just wanted
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          2  to echo certainly the comments that the Speaker

          3  made, and the issue concerning privatization has

          4  consistently over the years invested in the one

          5  belief that we will support it provided there is the

          6  argument that can be reasonably made that it

          7  improves the lives somehow of our constituents.

          8  Absent that, we will not run Helter Skelter to

          9  privatization.

         10                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I also would like

         12  to acknowledge, he is standing there by the wall,

         13  but someone also who is unique to remind -- he is

         14  coming back, so that is why he is important, the

         15  Council Member from the Bronx, Council Member

         16  Adolpho Carrion.

         17                 Any other Council members I have

         18  overlooked? If not, let me then call someone who I

         19  began when I first starting fighting, not fighting

         20  for each other, but fighting for these causes in

         21  Woodhull Hospital and other hospitals that allegedly

         22  lost their accreditation, the President of the

         23  Doctors Council, Dr. Barry Liebowitz.

         24                 DR. LIEBOWITZ: I am Dr. Barry

         25  Liebowitz, President of Doctors Council.
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          2                 Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Victor

          3  Robles.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good morning.

          5                 DR. LIEBOWITZ: It has been a pleasure

          6  to see you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

          8                 DR. LIEBOWITZ: My name is Barry

          9  Liebowitz, Dr. Barry Liebowitz. I am President of

         10  the Doctors Council, the nation's oldest and largest

         11  union of attending doctors in the United States.

         12                 We represent many attending

         13  physicians at the Health and Hospitals Corporation,

         14  its facilities throughout the City of New York. I

         15  thank you for this opportunity to testify at today's

         16  hearing. We would like to state our opposition to

         17  the HHC proposal to contract out security personnel.

         18                 We feel that it would be doing a

         19  great disservice to the many doctors, staff and

         20  patients who rely on HHC's highly competent security

         21  personnel, peace officers. The security officers

         22  currently employed at HHC facilities are experienced

         23  skilled professionals who know the hospitals and the

         24  medical staff that they protect. They are an

         25  integral part of operations at all HHC hospitals and
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          2  quite simply, they are the doctors' trusted

          3  protectors.

          4                 HHC's trained security force are able

          5  to diffuse difficult situations with great

          6  expertise, and they are widely relied upon for their

          7  experience and skill. Contracting out security

          8  services at HHC facilities would compromise the

          9  safety of doctors, medical personnel and, of course,

         10  patients and visitors.

         11                 HHC will be choosing a lower standard

         12  of security, and that is unacceptable.

         13                 Currently all HHC security personnel

         14  is subject to strict background checks and

         15  specialized training, to make them invaluable assets

         16  to the hospital staff.

         17                 We strongly urge the City Council to

         18  acknowledge and understand the importance of keeping

         19  the specially trained security professionals at the

         20  HHC facilities. I thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Dr. Liebowitz,

         22  let me just say that it is always good to see you. I

         23  know when you and I began I was just a member. I am

         24  glad to see that you have chosen to come back to the

         25  fold when I am chairman of this Committee. I think
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          2  my term limit now has gracefully come to be because

          3  you have returned to the fold. Thank you for coming

          4  this morning.

          5                 DR. LIEBOWITZ: Thank you. It is

          6  always a pleasure.

          7                 Bruce Simon now.

          8                 MR. SIMON: Good morning, Mr.

          9  Chairman, and members of the Committee, and thank

         10  you for the opportunity to appear here and address

         11  an issue of major importance. My name is Bruce

         12  Simon, I am with the law firm of Cohn, Weiss and

         13  Simon, we are counsel to Local 237, IBT, the Labor

         14  organization which represents New York's hospital

         15  police.

         16                 First perhaps my New York City

         17  qualifications. I was born in Queens, graduated P.S.

         18  44, Far Rockaway High School, and Brooklyn College.

         19  Except for the law school and the army, I have lived

         20  in New York City all of my life.

         21                 My professional qualifications, law

         22  degree from Harvard. I have practiced for the last

         23  40 years with my firm. I am a member of the New York

         24  City Board of Collective Bargaining, a member of the

         25  Board of the AFL-CIO Lawyers Coordinating Committee,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  a Charter Fellow of the College of Labor Employment

          3  Lawyers, and I have taught, lectured and written

          4  widely in the field.

          5                 Today I will talk about the power of

          6  the City Council to enact the proposed legislation.

          7  Quite simply, New York City Council may require HHC

          8  to utilize security personnel, having peace officer

          9  status.

         10                 When HHC was created by the State

         11  Legislature, then Mayor, the late Mayor John

         12  Lindsay, stated in his letter, which is in the

         13  Governor's bill jacket, that in establishing a

         14  public benefit corporation, the City is not getting

         15  out of the hospital business, rather it is

         16  establishing a mechanism to aided and better

         17  managing that business for the benefit not only of

         18  the public served by the hospitals, but the entire

         19  City health service system.

         20                 The municipal health care system will

         21  continue to be the City's responsibility, governed

         22  by policies determined by the City Council, the

         23  Board of Estimate, this was before Charter Revision,

         24  the Mayor and the Health Services Administration on

         25  behalf of and in consultation with the citizens of
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          2  New York City.

          3                 The statute creating HHC provides

          4  that it is subject to the control of the City

          5  Council and other New York City officials in varied

          6  aspects of its operations. The City Council directly

          7  designates five of the members of the HHC Board, HHC

          8  must make annual reports to the Council, that are

          9  subject to auditing by the City Comptroller, it must

         10  receive the consent of the City Council before

         11  disposing of any real property and it is subject to

         12  the City Charter's conflict of interest provisions.

         13                 HHC is funded in part by the City

         14  Treasury, therefore, it is a City agency within the

         15  meaning of the general definition provision of the

         16  City Charter. City agencies are subject to City

         17  Council control through local laws.

         18                 The same statute which created HHC

         19  provides for City control of HHC policies and plans.

         20  HHC must exercise its powers to provide and deliver

         21  health and medical services to the public, in

         22  accordance with the policies and the plans of the

         23  City Administration, with respect to the provision

         24  and the delivery of such services.

         25                 The City Charter gives the Department
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          2  of Health jurisdiction to regulate all matters

          3  affecting health in the City of New York, to analyze

          4  and monitor hospitals, clinics, nursing homes and

          5  homes for the aged, analyze, evaluate, supervise and

          6  regulate clinical laboratories, blood banks, and

          7  related facilities providing medical and health

          8  services and services ancillary thereto.

          9                 The City Council exercises control

         10  over the Department of Health. Under the City

         11  Charter the City Council is granted the power to

         12  adopt local laws which it deems appropriate, not

         13  inconsistent with the provisions of the Charter of

         14  the constitution of the laws of the United States or

         15  this State, for the good rule and government for the

         16  City, for the order, protection and government of

         17  persons and property, for the preservation of public

         18  health, comfort, peace and prosperity of the City

         19  and its inhabitants, and to effectuate the purposes

         20  and provisions of this Charter or the other laws

         21  relating to the City.

         22                 For example, the City Council has

         23  required the Board of Health directly to regulate

         24  hospitals, including HHC hospitals in the City.

         25                 For instance, the Board requires
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          2  immediate provision of interpretation services for

          3  non-English-speaking residents in all hospital

          4  emergency rooms located in New York City.

          5                 When such non-speaking residents

          6  comprise at least ten percent of patient population

          7  of a service area of a particular hospital. This

          8  provision, of course, applies to all hospitals in

          9  the City, including HHC hospitals.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Which was my

         11  bill, thank you.

         12                 MR. SIMON: It didn't pass unnoticed.

         13                 Cities are empowered by the New York

         14  State General City Law to make local laws

         15  controlling City property and local affairs, as well

         16  as to provide for the safety, health, comfort and

         17  general welfare of City inhabitants. New York City

         18  Council is thus free to amend or add to the

         19  provisions of the City code that govern public

         20  health.

         21                 The courts have held that a

         22  municipality, which is empowered to adopt health

         23  regulations may, in spite of general regulations by

         24  the state, adopt additional regulations or

         25  requirements where there is a real distinction
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          2  business between the City and other parts of the

          3  State.

          4                 Thus, the City Council is empowered

          5  to determine that the health and safety of the

          6  patients, visitors and staff at HHC facilities,

          7  requires HHC utilize peace officers at those

          8  facilities.

          9                 Other witnesses have and will address

         10  the very significant differences between the current

         11  hospital police force with peace officer status, and

         12  private security guards with no such status.

         13                 I will not duplicate their efforts,

         14  minding the Chairman's direction not to do so. But

         15  in terms of power, and I respectfully submit the

         16  obligation of the Council to fulfill the City's

         17  fundamental object of protecting the health and

         18  safety of its citizens, the public policy question

         19  is clear. Has the City been divested of this

         20  obligation as apparently City Hall by a piece of

         21  paper delivered this morning would seem to suggest?

         22  I respectfully suggest to you the answer is clearly

         23  no.

         24                 If HHC is permitted to replace its

         25  sworn peace officer police force, with an
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          2  unregulated poverty wage contingent workforce, it

          3  doesn't take legal prognosticator of the first order

          4  to forecast future litigation regarding inevitable

          5  instances at public hospitals where HHC and New York

          6  City exposure will be magnified by orders of

          7  magnitude.

          8                 I have looked briefly at the City's

          9  submission this morning, and I must say that it is

         10  really an attempted shell game to avoid the

         11  responsibilities that the City possesses with regard

         12  to a jurisdictional patch quilt (sic). This is not a

         13  personnel issue with regard to the Department of

         14  Health and Hospitals. This is a public safety issue.

         15  You are not here regulating personnel property,

         16  personnel issues, you are determining a level of

         17  public safety requirements for the City hospitals.

         18                 One only has to read the daily

         19  newspapers, and today is perhaps a prime example, to

         20  understand that issues of violence and issues of

         21  guns, and issues of public safety are as they have

         22  never before been, part of our societal fabric.

         23                 There is no institution in our

         24  society more subject to the need for reasoned

         25  professional, experienced protection and law
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          2  enforcement than the City's public hospitals.

          3                 I am available for your questions.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just thank

          5  you for taking the time to come before us and

          6  testify.

          7                 Are there any questions by my

          8  colleagues?

          9                 Council Member DiBrienza.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Ever so

         11  briefly. I thought the point you just made was

         12  critical, that is to say the level of protection

         13  that we speak to; in other words, peace officer

         14  status provides company, has certain, you know,

         15  company characteristics that increase the level of

         16  protection afforded wherever those peace officer

         17  status individuals may be, in this case inside

         18  hospitals.

         19                 In your review of the law, it sounded

         20  like the key factors, our determination, the

         21  Chairman and the Committee and members and hopefully

         22  tomorrow the whole Council's determination of the

         23  requirement for that elevated level of protection

         24  that we speak to, not exactly who does it where and

         25  when, but that level for protection; did I hear it
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          2  right?

          3                 MR. SIMON: You did. And I referred to

          4  PS 44 Queens, when I graduated PS 44 Queens I won

          5  the Civics medal. It was the only thing I ever won.

          6  And without giving a basic civics lesson, there is

          7  no function of government more essential than almost

          8  any other in the preservation of peace and security.

          9  There is no issue that has been relegated to local

         10  control more significantly than that precise issue.

         11  This is not a Republican or a Democrat or liberal or

         12  conservative question, this is something upon which

         13  I believe everyone paying attention to the structure

         14  of our government and democracy would agree.

         15                 So, I think it is, as I say, an

         16  evasion of that essential issue, to say that this

         17  Council, close as it is to the people of the City of

         18  New York, and charged as it is with the preservation

         19  of peace and security and safety, somehow lacks the

         20  power and jurisdiction to address that issue.

         21                 So, I think, Councilman DiBrienza,

         22  you are right on point.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Mr.

         24  Chairman, I don't think you will let me get away

         25  without saying to the witness, if no doubt the
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          2  Brooklyn College portion of that illustrious career

          3  influence you greatly, the two of us being Brooklyn

          4  representatives.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you so

          6  much, I appreciate it.

          7                 William Daly.

          8                 MR. DALY: Good morning, Mr. Chairman,

          9  distinguished members of the Council and of the

         10  Committee. I am William Daly, Managing Director of

         11  Kroll Associates. Kroll Associates is an

         12  international security consulting and investigative

         13  firm headquartered here in New York City. We have

         14  over 35 offices around the world, and employ 3,500

         15  professionals. We are independent security

         16  consultants to many major corporations and

         17  government agencies. By independence, I refer to the

         18  fact that we are not a security guard company, nor

         19  do we sell or represent security equipment.

         20                 In fact, Kroll Associates conducted

         21  many security assessments of many major landmarked

         22  buildings here in New York City. My own professional

         23  experience includes ten years with the FBI in New

         24  York, eight years of corporate security experience

         25  also here in New York, and 11 years of security
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          2  consulting with Kroll Associates.

          3                 Kroll has been retained by Local 237

          4  with regard to independently assessing the issues

          5  relating to the use of peace officers in New York

          6  City's public hospitals.

          7                 Although we have only begun this

          8  process, I have reviewed the background material

          9  relating to the proposal for security guard services

         10  by the New York City Health and Hospitals

         11  Corporation.

         12                 While reviewing this material I did

         13  not find any mention or any detailed information

         14  relating to an assessment of the vulnerabilities or

         15  risk that face New York City public hospitals. This

         16  assessment of risk, better known in our industry as

         17  a threat assessment, is an analysis of security

         18  issues that face specific organizations and/or

         19  individuals. The threat assessment is a cornerstone

         20  on which the appropriate level of security is

         21  developed. I have now seen evidence that this such

         22  basic step was taken by HHC prior to developing

         23  requests for proposal for security guard services,

         24  which would replace the peace officers throughout

         25  all of HHC's hospitals and health care facilities.
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          2                 Including in our engagement with

          3  Local 237 is the development of an independent

          4  threat assessment of risks facing New York City's

          5  public hospitals. As part of this process, we are

          6  conducting on-site reviews of several facilities,

          7  and just yesterday I made an inspection of Harlem

          8  Hospital.

          9                 It is important in this testimony to

         10  highlight the differences between New York State

         11  peace officers and a security guard.

         12                 In Section 1.2, Article 2 of the New

         13  York State Criminal Procedure Law, the

         14  responsibilities of Peace Officers is clearly

         15  defined. And for the purposes of this proceeding, it

         16  is important to note that a peace officer for HHC

         17  can:

         18                 - make warrantless arrests.

         19                 - detain and restrain persons.

         20                 - issue uniform appearance tickets

         21  and uniform vehicle navigation summons.

         22                 - possess and take custody of

         23  firearms and other lethal weapons.

         24                 To become a peace officer, an

         25  individual must undergo five weeks of training, and
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          2  on a yearly basis a peace officer must take a

          3  week-long recertification course.

          4                 By comparison, a security guard can

          5  only make a citizens arrest, and as a requirement of

          6  the New York State Security Guard Act, these

          7  individuals completed eight hours of training to

          8  qualify as a security guard, 16 hours of on the job

          9  training by an employer and eight hours

         10  recertification of training a year.

         11                 The training syllabus for a peace

         12  officer embraces a variety of subject areas,

         13  including justifiable use of force, police and peace

         14  officers law and procedures, tactical use of baton,

         15  restraint techniques and handcuffs, also gang

         16  recognition and weapons, introduction to weapons of

         17  mass destruction.

         18                 On a day-to-day practical level the

         19  HHC peace officers have the authority to intercede

         20  and take action in events where security guards

         21  would not have the authority. In many instances all

         22  a security guard would be able to do is to observe

         23  and call the police.

         24                 During my visit to Harlem Hospital, I

         25  was told of a variety of incidents that have
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          2  occurred in which the HHC police have responded and

          3  intervened without the need to summon New York City

          4  Police Department. I was also advised as to how the

          5  HHC police under their authority detain, process and

          6  transport suspects to the NYPD without the police,

          7  the New York City police, having to respond to the

          8  agency facility.

          9                 I was also very impressed with the

         10  professionalism of the HHC police officers I met

         11  yesterday at Harlem Hospital, and also impressed

         12  with the level of concern they have, not only for

         13  the fellow hospital staff members, but for the

         14  people of the community that they serve.

         15                 I look forward to continuing our

         16  threat assessment working with the Local soon, and I

         17  am happy to answer any questions that you may have

         18  at this time.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The only

         20  question, you and I have to meet, because the last

         21  time I attempted to go to Harlem Hospital to hold an

         22  oversight hearing, the barred me from going there.

         23  So, I need to find out how you did it.

         24                 MR. DALY: I know the right people I

         25  guess.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Does any member

          3  of the Committee or members have any question?

          4                 Again, thank you for taking the time

          5  and joining us.

          6                 MR. DALY: Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Before I call the

          8  next person again, every vote, as the head-counter

          9  as the Majority Whip, I need, especially not only

         10  today but tomorrow, let me introduce again a

         11  colleague who is not a member of this Committee but

         12  a prime sponsor of this bill, Council Member Adolpho

         13  Carrion.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chairman. And as you stated, I am not a member

         16  of this Committee, but I thought it was important

         17  that I come here to express my support for this bill

         18  and to encourage other colleagues to support it.

         19                 I think that it is only right and

         20  appropriate that the public hospitals fall within

         21  the purview of responsibility, the City's

         22  responsibility to maintain public safety, public

         23  health. I want to express unequivocally my support

         24  for maintenance of our responsibility in this arena,

         25  and I think that this also speaks to a larger
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          2  philosophical issue that we are debating in this

          3  City which is the privatization of government

          4  services in general, and where we hold our workers,

          5  in terms of their benefits, in terms of their

          6  salaries, in terms of the families that they are

          7  trying to support. There is a larger philosophical

          8  debate going on here that falls within this context.

          9                 Notwithstanding, very specifically I

         10  want to say that I am in full support of Intro. 864,

         11  and if we win this battle, we continue to move

         12  toward winning the war.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

         15  Council member.

         16                 What we are going to do is call two

         17  people at a time so this way, because the important

         18  thing today is to move forward on the bill, so I am

         19  trying to be polite with everybody and I am trying

         20  to get this both done.

         21                 So, let's just call two persons and

         22  then see if we can expedite this.

         23                 And what I will do is, with all due

         24  respect, and I will give you three minutes so I can

         25  move this quicker.
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          2                 Let's go.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Elliott Sclar,

          4  and the Reverend Robert Foster.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Again, introduce

          6  yourself for the record and then proceed with your

          7  testimony. You have three minutes.

          8                 DR. SCLAR: Thank you, Chair Robles.

          9                 My name is Elliott Sclar, and I am

         10  Professor of Urban Planning and Public Affairs at

         11  Columbia University, and I want to thank you for the

         12  opportunity to appear before you today on this

         13  important matter.

         14                 I hold appointments in the Graduate

         15  School of Architecture, Planning and Preservation,

         16  the School of International Affairs. I am the

         17  Director of Graduate Programs in Urban Planning. I

         18  am an economist and I teach courses in privatization

         19  and public policy, as well as urban planning and

         20  economic development.

         21                 In May of 2000, Cornell University

         22  Press published my book "You Don't Always Get What

         23  You Pay For: The Economics of Privatization." The

         24  book was sponsored by the Century Foundation,

         25  formerly the 20th Century Fund. I wrote the book to
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          2  help public policy makers understand why it is often

          3  the case that seemingly straightforward ideas to

          4  contract out public services, the private providers

          5  often end up costing far more than anticipated and

          6  often creates a situation that is not as good as the

          7  one that existed prior to the privatization.

          8                 HHC is considering a bid from a joint

          9  venture of D.O.A.R. Security and John C. Mandel

         10  Security Associates D.O.A.R. Mandel, to replace the

         11  entire cadre of trained peace officers with private

         12  security guards. HHC contends that it will"save" $10

         13  million. However, that is a misleading use of the

         14  term "save". In the context of privatization,

         15  savings can only occur if the new, less expensive,

         16  privatized commodity is equivalent in quantity and

         17  quality to the former public product.

         18                 This HHC decision, should it ever be

         19  implemented, essentially means that HHC intends to

         20  degrade security out of 17 facilities. The public

         21  product is a security system maintained by

         22  competently-trained peace officers, the private

         23  product is a contingent and transitory workforce of

         24  poorly compensated "security guards", whose main

         25  skill is the ability to summon competent outside
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          2  help when a problem arises.

          3                 The alleged savings in this contract

          4  arise because D.O.A.R.-Mandel is in effect proposing

          5  to replace highly skilled and better compensated

          6  workers with a work force that is officially

          7  recognized by the United States Department of Labor

          8  as contingent workers. They are defined by DOL as

          9  workers who "do not have an explicit or implicit

         10  contract for long-term employment." DOL goes further

         11  and they explicitly define as contingent workers

         12   "individuals identified as working for a contract

         13  company and usually only work for one customer at

         14  the customer's worksite." Hence, D.O.A.R.-Mandel is

         15  proposing to create a private security force

         16  comprised of individuals who do not have an explicit

         17  or implicit contract for long-term employment to

         18  protect public workers, public property and

         19  individuals who use public medical facilities.

         20                 They are offering to supply as many

         21  security guards as HHC requires at all hours of the

         22  day and night, 365 days a year, for a flat rate of

         23  $12.45 an hour.

         24                 The company is claiming that the rate

         25  is sufficient to cover the cost of continually
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          2  training its transitory workforce, compensating

          3  them, covering its managerial overhead and earning a

          4  profit. This proves to be an economic miscalculation

          5  or an intentional low-ball bid, the consequences for

          6  HHC in the City of New York will be severe.

          7                 Under New York Law, the contract must

          8  pay prevailing wages. In the present case, that

          9  amounts to a total compensation package of $9.44 an

         10  hour. This breaks out into $8.17 per hour for wages

         11  and $1.27 for benefits.

         12                 The contingent implications of this

         13  become stark when we consider what these figures

         14  mean in the context of full-time work. A standard

         15  full-time work year is 2,080 hours. At $8.17 an

         16  hour, that amount yields an annual gross income of

         17  $16,994.

         18                 According to the Department of

         19  Commerce, poverty level income for a family of four

         20  is currently $17,601. It is important to bear in

         21  mind that this figure is a national average on a

         22  starvation budget. If we were to put this in New

         23  York terms, moving this along quickly, which would

         24  be say 150 percent of poverty, the wage they are

         25  proposing would scarcely keep a family of two out of
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          2  poverty. If we consider that the median rent in New

          3  York $650, this income doesn't even cover 30 percent

          4  of the budget for rent, this doesn't even cover

          5  two-thirds of rent. And there is no doubt that this

          6  leads to the data I have, which in my testimony will

          7  show that it leads to much higher rates of turnover.

          8  It's statistically irrefutable.

          9                 We also know that that costs money.

         10  It can cost as much as $58,000 to replace an $18,000

         11  worker, as one study found.

         12                 The problem here is that because this

         13  is contracted work, ultimately HHC bears the cost of

         14  this contingent workforce in one of two ways, a more

         15  degraded security product, because the contractor

         16  can't do the job, or a more expensive contract

         17  because the low wage, low-quality product is

         18  unacceptable.

         19                 There are two other outcomes

         20  theoretically: HHC could cancel the contract and

         21  seek another provider, but that is not likely, given

         22  the start-up cost and delay; or, they could insist

         23  that the company fulfill the contract, in which case

         24  the company has a right to declare bankruptcy.

         25                 Hence, we are effectively looking at
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          2  a situation in which the high cost of low wages will

          3  be borne by HHC and the taxpayers of New York, in

          4  the guise of decreased service and higher prices.

          5                 I am available for any questions you

          6  may have.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I thank you.

          8                 Chaplain.

          9                 REVEREND FOSTER: Good morning, Mr.

         10  Chairman, and to the members of the Council. My name

         11  is The Reverend Robert James Foster. I am also a

         12  chaplain for the Hospital Police Department. I have

         13  been on the job for 23 years. In the past 15 years I

         14  have been the Department Chaplain at Kings County

         15  Hospital, and I represent all of the officers of all

         16  of the hospitals of HHC.

         17                 Mr. Chairman, since I have been on

         18  the job, and as the Chaplain for the hospital, I

         19  have attended 51 funerals of hospital peace

         20  officers. I have done three weddings, four baby

         21  blessings and three house blessings. Mr. Chairman, I

         22  am also a member of the International Commerce of

         23  Police Chaplains. That is the organization that

         24  certified me as a law enforcement chaplain.

         25                 I am also a member of the Board of
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          2  Management of the Brooklyn Council of Churches.

          3                 To have to see a bill pass means a

          4  great deal to the officers and the families. Also,

          5  for the HHC to get rid of hospital police, in my

          6  opinion, will be an insult to the 51 officers that

          7  worked and have gone on to be with the Lord. I have

          8  51 of the programs of the officers that died, two of

          9  them died in the line of duty, Sergeant Leow and

         10  Police Officer Battea, who was stabbed 17 times on

         11  the train on his way to work. It would be an insult

         12  to these officers who have gone on to know that this

         13  job has been abolished by HHC.

         14                 I have done so many things since I

         15  have been on the job. I have helped delivered three

         16  babies of cab drivers who drove up to the hospital,

         17  but the babies could not wait until they got into

         18  the hospital. I have worked with the Hospital

         19  Chaplain, the rest of the Hospital Chaplains, in

         20  counseling patients. I have counseled hospital

         21  police officers.

         22                 Mr. Chairman, believe me when I tell

         23  you that the hospital will lose a great deal if they

         24  get rid of hospital police. There are four other

         25  ordained ministers who are hospital police officers.
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          2  There are times I have been called to assist doctors

          3  when the patients needed some help. One of the

          4  incidents is a mother who just gave birth to her

          5  baby, then she had to be told that her first child

          6  fell out the window and died. They called for the

          7  hospital Chaplain, they couldn't find none, so they

          8  called me, and I stood by the mother and prayed with

          9  her.

         10                 Another time I assisted with a

         11  patient that was about to commit suicide. Many

         12  hospital peace officers have degrees in other

         13  fields, it would be crazy to get rid of hospital

         14  peace officers, because we could do so much better

         15  than private security guards.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         18  much. Thank you both.

         19                 We are going to call a panel of

         20  people.

         21                 Anthony Miranda, President of Latino

         22  Officers Association. Eric Adams of the 100 Blacks

         23  in Law Enforcement. And Clark Pena, President of 100

         24  Latinos in Law Enforcement. If they are in the room?

         25                 While we are waiting, let me just say
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          2  that for those, because I see many of my friends who

          3  I work with every day as Chairman of this Committee,

          4  individual facilities, community advisory boards,

          5  let me just say that what I intend to do is, because

          6  this is very important, and like I said, many

          7  meetings are going on and I don't want to lose my

          8  members to those meetings, so about five to 12:00 I

          9  intend to move forward on voting on this bill. I ask

         10  you to understand that we have had three other

         11  hearings on this issue, so while I appreciate and I

         12  am glad to see new faces, I see, I don't mean old in

         13  terms of age, but old faces, we know the subject

         14  matter, that is why we have a bill, so I am not

         15  being disrespectful. I think it is important, the

         16  most important thing is we want the bill to pass so

         17  that tomorrow in the Council session we will also

         18  have a vote.

         19                 So, I will listen to everybody who

         20  took the time to come, but my priority is getting

         21  this bill out now that I have the votes.

         22                 Okay, let's go. So, we have now

         23  Anthony Miranda, the President of the Latino

         24  Officers Association, Eric Adams, 100 Blacks in Law

         25  Enforcement, Clark Pena, President, 100 Latinos in
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          2  Law Enforcement.

          3                 Again, let me just say that I am

          4  going to give you three minutes a piece, so when you

          5  hear the buzzer, don't let me step in and then get

          6  mad at me. It is just I am trying to deal with the

          7  issue which is more important, that is to move this

          8  bill.

          9                 So, I see four people there. I called

         10  three, but that's okay. Flip a coin and tell me who

         11  is going to go first. Identify yourself for the

         12  record.

         13                 MR. PENA: First of all, good morning.

         14  My name is Clark Pena, President of 100 Latinos in

         15  Law Enforcement, a fraternal membership-driven

         16  organization, serving the interests of New York City

         17  and New York State peace officers.

         18                 It is once again an honor to be given

         19  the opportunity to testify before this body today.

         20                 I want to first begin by saying thank

         21  you, thank you, thank you to Speaker Councilman

         22  Peter Vallone, and Council Member Victor Robles,

         23  introducing Intro. No. 864, which will hopefully

         24  save 850 hospital police officers from being

         25  eliminated from the roles of employment and placed
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          2  on the lines of unemployment.

          3                 I am here to state clearly that we

          4  support Intro. No. 864 and urge all the

          5  distinguished Council members to vote in the

          6  affirmative on this extremely important piece of

          7  legislation.

          8                 This amendment to the Administrative

          9  Code of the City of New York will send so many

         10  messages. It would first send a message to the 850

         11  hospital police officers that field calls for

         12  service 24 hours a day/seven days a week, that your

         13  work has not gone in vain. Your job is a very

         14  important one. We need you, we need more of you.

         15                 It would send a message to the

         16  patient, staff and visitors that use City hospitals

         17  that, yes, you will continue to be safe when you

         18  work, visit or receive treatment of these

         19  facilities.

         20                 It would send a clear message that,

         21  yes, the government does work, and, no, this is not

         22  a dictatorship. There is more than just one elected

         23  official in this town.

         24                 Just last month 100 Latinos in Law

         25  Enforcement held a press conference in front of
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          2  Bellevue Hospital Center to denounce the alleged

          3  rape and beating of a female patient New Years Eve.

          4  It was a hospital police officer who collared the

          5  perpetrator, and it will be a hospital police

          6  officer who will testify in a court of law to make

          7  sure that this person will never, never be able to

          8  commit such a viscous crime again to any person ever

          9  again.

         10                 It was a hospital police officer who

         11  stopped a fleeing prisoner under the custody of

         12  another police officer in the New York City Police

         13  Department from escaping off hospital grounds. It

         14  was a hospital police officer who rushed a pregnant

         15  female from a cold Bronx sidewalk to the warmth of

         16  the emergency room to give birth to a healthy baby

         17  girl.

         18                 We need you, we need more of you.

         19                 Finally, in closing, let us

         20  understand that health care cannot be provided in an

         21  atmosphere of fear and intimidation, so, therefore,

         22  I say once again, if you believe in unionism, if you

         23  believe in the rights of civil servants, then you

         24  must agree on the importance of a vote yes on Intro.

         25  No. 864.
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          2                 I thank you all for your attention.

          3  And may God bless our hospital police officers. May

          4  God bless us all. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 Who is next, Anthony?

          8                 MR. MIRANDA: I am Anthony Miranda,

          9  President of the Latino Officers Association, and we

         10  are definitely here in support of this bill, and to

         11  keep the professionalism of the hospital police

         12  officers.

         13                 I want to start by pointing out two

         14  things: I do not believe that the concerns that

         15  initially created hospital police have disappeared.

         16  I do not believe there is a price tag you can put on

         17  saving lives or a price tag that you can put on

         18  people feeling safe. I think they exemplify

         19  everything that challenges New York City Police

         20  Department, in that they have the confidence of the

         21  public, they are supported by their union, they are

         22  supported by the doctors, they are supported by the

         23  patients they serve. That type of relationship is

         24  not something that grows overnight. They built that,

         25  and it is something they should set the example for
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          2  all law enforcement communities, and what we are

          3  doing right now is dismantling the best example of

          4  community policing we have that exists today.

          5                 What we are also doing is the

          6  beginning of what I believe is anti-unionism. They

          7  have organized, they have raised the level of

          8  professionalism in this agency. These officers have

          9  put their lives on the line every day, and we have a

         10  number of examples of officers who have gotten hurt

         11  trying to save someone else.

         12                 For us to take action and this

         13  Administration to take action to say that a union

         14  that is predominantly again, we should also point

         15  out, predominantly minority union, over 90 percent

         16  minority, they live in the City, they reside here

         17  and they interact with our community. Everything

         18  that we are fighting for to have in the New York

         19  City Police Department already exists here in this

         20  agency. We should probably be embracing them and

         21  taking them into the New York City Police Department

         22  and saying let's follow this lead. That's not what

         23  we are doing here. So, we want to make sure that we

         24  are here in support of this union, of these men and

         25  women who represent our community, and represent
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          2  everything that exemplifies the professionalism in a

          3  police officer.

          4                 Thank you very much for having us.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 Before I have Eric, let me just say,

          8  Anthony, that I want to on record personally thank

          9  you and your association. You know, you bestowed an

         10  honor on me, and of course as a Latino, what better

         11  honor can be bestowed than by those who come within

         12  your own rank and your own community. So, please,

         13  although I personally sent letters, let the Latino

         14  Officers Association know that I was honored to be

         15  selected to be honored by you guys. Thank you so

         16  much.

         17                 MR. MIRANDA: We are proud to have

         18  you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Eric, it is

         20  always good seeing you.

         21                 MR. ADAMS: Thank you. Tony had a

         22  minute left, do I get four minutes and twelve?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am going to

         24  keep stopping the clock and let you get the full

         25  three minutes. Go ahead.
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          2                 MR. ADAMS: First, clearly, as I

          3  stated earlier, the hospital police personnel and

          4  the officers, they are a victim of their own

          5  success. Since we did not hear about some of the

          6  nefarious acts and some of the dangerous things that

          7  have taken place in other agencies in the City,

          8  since the hospital police officers have been capable

          9  of interacting with the community that they serve

         10  and interacting with their personnel in the

         11  hospital, they were successful at doing that. And it

         12  is because of that success many of us believe that

         13  you don't have crimes in hospitals. The crimes you

         14  have in the New York City subway system, in the

         15  housing developments, in other areas, take place in

         16  a hospital daily. Often it is a spill-off from what

         17  takes place in the street, it comes into the

         18  hospital. Domestic violence cases, psychiatric

         19  persons in need of psychiatric care, persons who are

         20  assault victims, the assurance, that many people in

         21  many communities of color, particularly the poorer

         22  communities in the City, they know 24 hours of the

         23  day you have a person in a blue uniform in the

         24  hospital that they can run to.

         25                 And I want to say this: I often spend
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          2  my time as a Lieutenant with the Police Department

          3  in the hospital, Brooklyn Hospital, and I speak to

          4  the hospital police personnel, I question them on

          5  what tactics they use when they safeguard an

          6  emotionally disturbed person, and I find out the

          7  different methods that they use, because when they

          8  walk out of a hospital and go home, they do what is

          9  different than any other agency in this City in

         10  policing, they walk home because they are normally a

         11  tow or three-block radius from the area in which

         12  they are actively assigned to be the hospital police

         13  personnel. They know the storekeepers, they know the

         14  little boys and girls that ride up and down the

         15  block from the school. They are real community

         16  policing. There is a level of hypocrisy in what we

         17  say when we talk about the ethnic make-up of people

         18  that should be in a certain profession, when we talk

         19  about they should live in a community, when we talk

         20  about they should be concerned about their

         21  community, yet we have a living example and we want

         22  to disband it under the guise of privatization. You

         23  cannot take a two-week training period from some of

         24  the people that we are employing now with the

         25  six-week training period that these highly technical
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          2  officers had to put in place to ensure that

          3  hospitals are safe. Being well or getting proper

          4  care in a hospital is not the only task. You don't

          5  undercut public safety. This is not Duane Reade,

          6  there is no discount on public safety. You have to

          7  pay for public safety. You must pay for it.

          8                 So, I applaud the City Council for

          9  being courageous enough to realize that our hospital

         10  personnel should be as professional as possible, and

         11  if we allow this Administration to take that away

         12  from our hospital agencies, then we are making a

         13  drastic mistake that will not only impact on the

         14  doctors and nurses, but it will impact on our

         15  families.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 Thank you very much, I appreciate

         20  that.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Deborah Bell,

         22  and John Frata.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Also, I am sorry,

         24  Raymond, right? There is a chair. Go ahead. We want

         25  the community advisory boards, those are the
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          2  backbones. We want to hear a cop, we want to hear

          3  the community people.

          4                 So, let's begin, and one thing I am

          5  going to overrule, with all due respect, there is a

          6  lady there so she should start first. That is what

          7  my mother and my grandmother taught me. Go.

          8                 MR. BERMUDEZ: No problem.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Having said that,

         10  let's begin with Debbie. Why don't you identify

         11  yourself for the record, and then proceed. Three

         12  minutes, please.

         13                 MS. BELL: Good morning. I will be

         14  brief.

         15                 My name is Deborah Bell, I am Public

         16  Policy Director at District Council 37, AFSCME.

         17                 On behalf of the nearly 20,000

         18  members of DC 37 who work in HHC, I am here today to

         19  speak in support of Intro. 864, to require that

         20  hospital security workers have peace officer status.

         21                 I am representing Lee Saunders,

         22  Administrator, and the leaders of the affiliated

         23  locals of DC 37, AFSCME, which represent workers in

         24  HHC.

         25                 We were here at the hearing in
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          2  October, and we told you that our main concern is

          3  that HHC's proposal to privatize security puts the

          4  safety of workers and patients at risk. Plain and

          5  simple.

          6                 The current hospital police force is

          7  made up of peace officers, with the training,

          8  authority and responsibility to diffuse difficult

          9  situations. They are paid at professional levels

         10  because they are professionals.

         11                 Furthermore, they are public

         12  employees who know it is their job to get involved

         13  and resolve problems.

         14                 Public health care facilities need a

         15  stable, well-trained security force. Turnover in

         16  private security companies is often very high

         17  because the jobs pay so poorly. Private security

         18  guards are only minimally trained and not paid much

         19  more than the minimum wage. A uniform does not

         20  automatically result in proper safety enforcement.

         21  HHC claims it will save money by contracting out

         22  security. Those savings, an estimated $10 million,

         23  will be wiped out by a single lawsuit if a patient

         24  is assaulted due to inadequate security. And

         25  security will be inadequate, if it is privatized.
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          2                 We, better than many know that very

          3  well from our experience in other agencies.

          4                 Council members have heard and seen

          5  stories about the problems in HRA arising from the

          6  use of private security guards. In the Department of

          7  Homeless Services, special officers were rehired

          8  after their repeated failures of private security

          9  guards to maintain order in the shelters.

         10                 This is a path we have been down in

         11  other agencies, we don't need to go down it again at

         12  HHC.

         13                 The decision to privatize hospital

         14  security demonstrates HHC's management's contempt

         15  for their patients and their employees. Patients who

         16  do not feel safe at HHC facilities will not come.

         17  Privatizing security constitutes another attempt by

         18  City Hall to deny New Yorkers access to health care

         19  and another attempt to destroy the health care,

         20  public health care delivery system.

         21                 The City Council is absolutely

         22  correct to demand of HHC management that the public

         23  hospital security force be made up of peace

         24  officers, and that the current hospital police force

         25  be maintained and strengthened where necessary, and
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          2  let me just add that since October I have been

          3  through a large number of labor management meetings

          4  in the facilities, in other words, since I was last

          5  here, and heard repeatedly the number one issue that

          6  employees bring to the discussion, whatever the

          7  agenda topic may be, is their concern about this

          8  proposal to private hospital security. We support

          9  your effort to keep that from happening.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 Okay, now we will flip a coin.

         14                 MR. FRATA: Good morning. My name is

         15  John Frata, I am the Chairman of the Gouverneur

         16  Hospital Community Advisory Board, I am also a

         17  Democratic district leader on the lower east side.

         18                 When this plan was first presented to

         19  us, it really gave us a grave concern, and let's

         20  face it, this plan has everything to do with trying

         21  to balance the budget on the backs of --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Just a second.

         23  Push your button for a second.

         24                 MR. FRATA: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.
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          2                 MR. FRATA: What this plan is

          3  attempting to do is balance the budget on the backs

          4  of poor people. This plan is definitely

          5  union-busting. This plan has taken qualified union

          6  employees into an excellent job, better job than

          7  many, and trying to replace them with low-paid,

          8  non-union employees, that aren't really going to get

          9  involved in the every day issues that happen at

         10  hospitals.

         11                 The hospital police, their presence

         12  alone gives a sense of security to everyone who

         13  walks into that facility, and let's face it, they

         14  have gotten involved in many dangerous situations,

         15  which a private security guard is not going to get

         16  involved. They are going to call 911 on the phone

         17  and probably hide under their desk, because they are

         18  not going to get up and do the job that these

         19  professionally-trained officers do.

         20                 Gouverneur Hospital, at our Advisory

         21  Board we debated this issue back and forth, and we

         22  had the union come at one meeting and give us their

         23  end of it, and HHC came at theirs. HHC still hasn't

         24  answered to us how many incidences were involved. We

         25  asked them for statistics, we still haven't gotten
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          2  that.

          3                 All HHC kept on saying is this is

          4  going to save the facilities money. You want to know

          5  something? We are not looking to save money, not if

          6  it is going to jeopardize any patients, or any staff

          7  member at our facility.

          8                 I really want to thank this

          9  Committee. I think, Mr. Chairman, you did a great

         10  job, and I hope this bill passes. You know, again,

         11  we cannot allow the Mayor to union bust any longer

         12  in this City.

         13                 In addition to that, and like Mrs.

         14  Bell just mentioned, this isn't something new. They

         15  had done this a few years ago with HRA, and it was a

         16  dismal failure, and the same thing is going to

         17  happen. So, I urge this body to pass this

         18  legislation. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 Raymond.

         22                 MR. BERMUDEZ: Thank you.

         23                 Good morning to Council Member Victor

         24  Robles, I don't know the other Council members, as

         25  well as everyone else here. My name is Raymond
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          2  Bermudez. I am past chairman of the Community

          3  Advisory Board of Elmhurst Hospital, and I am

          4  currently a member of the Elmhurst Hospital Medical

          5  Board, the Executive Board, the Community Board, and

          6  chairman of the Patient Care Committee at Elmhurst

          7  Hospital.

          8                 Since I am a volunteer, as a

          9  volunteer I have been serving on these committees

         10  here at Elmhurst Hospital for over 20 years and in

         11  order to ensure that all of the doctors and nurses

         12  and the medical staff and the Executive Board

         13  members, as well as all the patients, all the

         14  employees, at Elmhurst Hospital are properly served,

         15  cared for and protected.

         16                 I am therefore very concerned about

         17  the current proposal to eliminate and replace all of

         18  our very well trained, experienced and dedicated

         19  officers at Elmhurst Hospital, as well as at all of

         20  the other health facilities within the Health and

         21  Hospitals Corporation.

         22                 Our current 850 officers serving each

         23  and every facility within the HHC organization who

         24  provide official and professional protection to

         25  everyone within these many facilities, I have been
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          2  told that there are plans to completely eliminate

          3  them and replace them with inexperienced, not

          4  properly trained groups, whom I have been also

          5  advised they will not be expected to interfere

          6  physically or intervene physically, or get involved

          7  in any physical action that may take place in any of

          8  these facilities by any abnormally affected or

          9  possibly demented patient or persons of this type be

         10  occurred within these premises.

         11                 I therefore highly recommend that the

         12  Local Law No. 864, a local law to amend the

         13  Administrative Code of the City of New York, in

         14  relation to the performance of the duties of the

         15  peace officers at public hospitals, and other health

         16  facilities, funded in whole or in part by the City

         17  Treasury, be approved. And I thank all of you very,

         18  very much for listening to me.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 Let me just quickly say, let me just

         23  say both to Mr. Frata and Raymond Bermudez, the

         24  reason why you are so important, because I think

         25  people forget that within the corporation there are
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          2  volunteers, community leaders, who give of

          3  themselves every single day and meet on a regular

          4  basis once a month, so I want you to know that this

          5  Chair and this Committee really appreciate, and it

          6  is good to see the leadership within these community

          7  advisory boards, to take your time, and your own

          8  time, because you volunteered to testify on a very

          9  important issue. I encourage it, I welcome it, and I

         10  assure you that as far as I am concerned, so long as

         11  I preside, you are just as important as everybody

         12  else. So, thank you very much.

         13                 MR. BERMUDEZ: Thank you very much.

         14  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, we are

         16  going to take three more people, before the clerk

         17  comes up to start on the roll call, and then finish

         18  up with the last two. Why don't we just call the

         19  next three.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Dr. Kevin

         21  Brown, Arlene Seidenberg, and Joan Viola.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: All right,

         23  members, hold up a second.  I see Claude coming into

         24  the room. I am going to ask for your indulgence,

         25  because it is very important.
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          2                 Sergeant-At-Arms, ring the bell so

          3  that members that are on the Committee can come back

          4  in so we can do the vote.

          5                 Bear with us, we will listen to your

          6  testimony. I think this is very important, before I

          7  lose members.

          8                 Okay, Mr. Clerk, do you want to call

          9  the roll call, please.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Robles.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Why don't we just

         12  go on record on what we are voting on and let people

         13  know what we are doing.

         14                 Okay, let me just say, I want to

         15  thank everyone for bearing with us, and, of course,

         16  this is something we should say, of course, we

         17  support, of course we are with you, this is what

         18  this body is all about, so I vote yes, and I urge

         19  all my colleagues to vote yes on this bill.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK: Leffler.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: May I please

         22  be excused to explain my vote?

         23                 For reasons that I stated earlier, I

         24  vote aye on this legislation. I do think there is an

         25  issue, a legal issue as to the power of the Council
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          2  to enact the legislation. Peace officers defined

          3  term, I forget whether it is under the criminal

          4  procedure law, the criminal law, but one of the two,

          5  which is state law, and I think there has been an

          6  ongoing issue over time as to the Council's powers

          7  to define certain people as peace officers.

          8                 I am not saying that I don't think we

          9  have the power, I think it is an issue which will be

         10  resolved in the courts. I think that the case has

         11  been made repeatedly, and therefore, I vote aye.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Continue the roll

         13  call.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK: Reed.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: May I be excused

         16  to explain my vote?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         18  Reed.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chair. I didn't take the opportunity to ask

         21  questions during the testimony because I wanted to

         22  give people ample opportunity out here to speak, and

         23  I think many of us want to apologize, it looks like

         24  we are going back and forth, which is no reflection

         25  on the significance of what we are trying to do, and
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          2  it has been stated more eloquently by many of you,

          3  and it is really stated eloquently that so many of

          4  you who are peace officers, and I emphasize the word

          5  "peace", have come out today and have come to all

          6  of these hearings, so I want to thank you very much

          7  for taking this time. This is what is how we get

          8  business done, to show your faith, to tell people

          9  that what it is that you are doing is important. So,

         10  I am proud to have the opportunity to vote on a bill

         11  that we listened to testimony and constructed

         12  legislation that tries to reflect on not only the

         13  peace and safety but the heart and soul of what the

         14  City ought to be doing for its people. I vote very

         15  proudly aye. Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK: Espada.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: May I be

         18  excused to explain my vote, Mr. Chair?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         20  Espada.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: I just again

         22  would like to echo the sentiment that I gave earlier

         23  today, thanking local 237, and Carl Haynes, and 100

         24  Latinos in Law Enforcement, Clark Pena, who

         25  constantly was informing our office of what was
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          2  going on, and as I said before, months and months

          3  ago invited us to the first press conference that we

          4  had at Lincoln, at the Jacobi Hospital on this issue

          5  many, many moons ago.

          6                 And also, just to say that although

          7  sometimes this process may seem a little bit

          8  cumbersome, and we heard from a lot of people today,

          9  it was very useful today, as I think that we may

         10  have gotten enough people that spoke up on this

         11  issue today where we may have overridden the veto

         12  prior to it even happening. So, congratulations to

         13  all of you who have been coming on out here and

         14  supporting this. I think that your presence makes a

         15  tremendous difference in our votes and I vote aye.

         16  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Continue the roll

         18  call.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK: Quinn.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Having been

         21  allowed by the Chair to speak earlier, I will just

         22  very, very enthusiastically vote aye, and just say

         23  that perhaps there won't be a veto, but if there is

         24  a veto I will look forward to voting

         25  enthusiastically aye on overriding that veto as
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          2  well.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Continue the roll

          4  call.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Oddo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: May I be

          7  temporarily excused to catch my breath?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

          9  Oddo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: I was just

         11  having a meeting in the Minority Leader's Office, I

         12  apologize for stepping out.

         13                 I would like to vote aye, and my vote

         14  reflects a very simple sentiment, that my

         15  constituents deserve better than rent-a-cops, and I

         16  would like to again ask that my name be placed on

         17  the bill.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. Continue

         19  the roll call, and please add Council Member Oddo.

         20  We will take it from wherever it comes, so put him

         21  on the bill.

         22                 Let me just say this, I am going to

         23  allow the roll to stay open for Council Member

         24  Clarke. As you recall, she asked, as long as it is

         25  within a reasonable time, and then we will close the
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          2  roll. But in the meantime, why don't we just

          3  announce what we have now in place, and then with

          4  the understanding that Council Member Clarke was

          5  here, went to a meeting and said she will come back,

          6  so I will leave it open for awhile.

          7                 Continue.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Six in the

          9  affirmative, zero in the negative, no abstentions,

         10  the item is adopted.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         12  much. Please sign the roll call.

         13                 Let me just, before, and I am sorry

         14  that Council Member Leffler is not here, let me just

         15  say something to correct the record.

         16                 First of all, you know, some of us

         17  get tired of being told that we cannot do something.

         18  Explain that to my constituents who were smart

         19  enough to elect me. But let me say this: You know,

         20  they said the same thing about when we challenged

         21  the selling and closing of Neponsit Nursing Home,

         22  which was under HHC, you know something, folks? It

         23  took us four years, that is why we have legal minds

         24  and professional minds and we have court, and after

         25  four years, guess what? We were right, they were
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          2  wrong.

          3                 So, for those who doubt whether we

          4  have the authority, see you in court. Let the courts

          5  decide whether I am right or wrong, but that is

          6  nonsense. And I am not going to accept the fact that

          7  my constituents were smart enough when they sent me

          8  here, and whether I am right or wrong, I am not a

          9  lawyer, but there are enough lawyers around me that

         10  I take their word for it. So, I am assuming what we

         11  are doing is right. I am assuming what we are doing

         12  is what government is all about, government of the

         13  people, by the people, for the people, and so long

         14  as that stays there, that is what we are going to

         15  do.

         16                 I apologize, but I had to get it off

         17  my chest. I am getting fed up with this nonsense

         18  that we can't do this and can't do that.

         19                 Let's go. Council Member DiBrienza.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Mr.

         21  Chairman, I just want to say, as a non-member of the

         22  Committee, but, as you know, an active member of

         23  this Council and a lawyer, that I believe, from

         24  everything I have read, and the presentation made

         25  today, that we are on absolutely sound, legal ground
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          2  to prescribe what level of security is necessary to

          3  protect the public, in this case, the hospital-going

          4  public, and its various staffers that we represent

          5  as a City. And, so, I think at the end of the day I

          6  am hopeful we don't end up in court because we are

          7  on firm legal ground, number one.

          8                 Number two, if I can just ask you

          9  this: My guess is there are a lot of hospital guards

         10  out here? Hospital police out here, did I say

         11  guards?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That's a no no.

         13  Go ahead.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Hospital

         15  police. Never mind, now I blew it so forget it. It's

         16  not important. I just assume that there are a lot in

         17  the audience, I was wondering if for a second they

         18  could stand.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You can stand, go

         20  ahead.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: The reason

         22  I ask is, look at the real City of New York, the

         23  array of people, and faces, races and cultures and

         24  everything else, and I just think the point I made

         25  earlier, that is why the work you do is so
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          2  important. These are the real folks of New York that

          3  serve other real folks of New York, and that is

          4  important. That's all.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

          6                 Let me just say that because you were

          7  nice enough to allow us to vote, I am not going to

          8  use the clock, you can take all the time you want.

          9                 So, why don't we go back to hearing

         10  you and then we have two others. As a matter of

         11  fact, Steve, there will be some police officers,

         12  hospital police officers who will testify. So, I am

         13  ready to sit here and listen to you. So, why don't

         14  we have ladies first. Just identify yourselves for

         15  the record and let's proceed.

         16                 MS. VIOLA: My name is Mrs. Joan

         17  Viola. I am a clinical instructor at North Central

         18  Bronx Hospital. I was, to say the least, shocked to

         19  hear that anyone wanted to take our hospital police

         20  out of our hospital. We, as nurses, doctors, we

         21  can't work without thought of our hospital police

         22  being there with us. They are a team. When they come

         23  on the unit, they are there like that. We know what

         24  they know, they work with us.

         25                 I, for one, have a daughter working
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          2  in the hospital, too. Do you think I, or my

          3  daughter, are going to stay in a hospital, in an

          4  emergency room, in a psychiatric unit, all over the

          5  hospital violence, it is all over the place, you are

          6  going to tell us I can take a guard up there, and

          7  that guard isn't going to beat it out faster than

          8  anything, because he only makes a few dollars? No.

          9                 But the officers that I work with,

         10  put their life on the line. You call, they are

         11  there. They know what to do. I don't have to say now

         12  you do this, I don't have to say you can't do that.

         13  They know what they are doing. They are about who

         14  they are and they care about the people they are

         15  working for. After all, if certain people in this

         16  New York City, if someone says something wrong to

         17  them or they don't like, they get two police

         18  officers to guard them day and night, and we have an

         19  ex-Police Commissioner who has his own security, and

         20  he is getting 12 police officers to guard him? Hell,

         21  I don't want any of those security guards around me.

         22  No way. Don't take my police officers away, or you

         23  are not going to have nurses working in the

         24  hospitals.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am getting up
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          2  there in life; would you like to tell me who that

          3  ex-Police Commissioner is that has 12 body guards?

          4  No, I am only joking.

          5                 MS. VIOLA: He lives in Staten Island.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Listen, I learn

          7  everyday something, I didn't even know where he

          8  lived.

          9                 Go ahead. Yes, Ma'am.

         10                 MS. SEIDENBERG: Hi. My name is Arlene

         11  Seidenberg. I am a registered nurse, I am a head

         12  nurse of our occupational health service at North

         13  Central Bronx Hospital, and I just had to come out

         14  here today. I have been out of the hospital now for

         15  12 years, and our hospital police officers are

         16  really family, because we have all known each other

         17  for many years.

         18                 Working in our employee health

         19  service, it is not unusual for us to see the

         20  hospital police officers, one or sometimes more than

         21  one, come up in order to be treated, and they are

         22  being treated because they got involved protecting a

         23  patient, or protecting a staff member, and we really

         24  need them.

         25                 On my way down, in fact, today, in
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          2  the car, I was told by one of the hospital police

          3  officers how she and two others had actually saved

          4  the life of one of the patients, who didn't

          5  appreciate it at the time, but two weeks afterwards

          6  sent a letter thanking her, thanking them for saving

          7  their lives.

          8                 In the work that I do I am up on the

          9  16th floor, and I often work alone after hours with

         10  the door closed. There is hardly anybody else up on

         11  that floor. But I feel very comfortable there, and I

         12  have been doing it for a long time, because I know

         13  periodically I can hear the door jiggling and I know

         14  that they are up there and they are there protecting

         15  me.

         16                 I just can't imagine working at the

         17  hospital with security guards who are really not

         18  properly trained, and who I can't expect to do the

         19  job that our hospital police have been doing.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 Sir.

         24                 DR. BROWN: Thank you. My name is

         25  Kevin Brown. I am the Medical Director at the North
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          2  Central Bronx Hospital. I applaud the Council for

          3  voting for Intro. Bill 864.

          4                 I think a lot of material has been

          5  said today, I am not going to reiterate the same

          6  material. I would just say from the doctors' and

          7  nurses' standpoint, we choose to work in City

          8  hospitals, often in areas that are, you know, the

          9  surrounding area still has a high crime area. We

         10  like where we work, but we have to work feeling that

         11  it is safe. We can't work when there is fear. And

         12  you would realize that with some of the cutbacks

         13  that Health and Hospitals have gone through, they

         14  are downsizing, they are trying to sell off our

         15  buildings, they are trying to do a lot of other

         16  things, we are functioning with a lot less staff

         17  than we have. What does that lead to? It leads to

         18  waits. On a Friday night when I come to work and the

         19  emergency department waiting room is packed, tempers

         20  are flaring.

         21                 The people who protect us so that we

         22  can kind of work through that 12-hour shift at night

         23  is the hospital police officers. And I would just

         24  agree with what Eric Adams and the other union

         25  officers have said, which was that it is community

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            106

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  policing at its best. I walk in, they say hi, they

          3  know me, I know them, and I would tell you, the

          4  times that an irate dad would come into my face

          5  because he has waited for two hours, and we

          6  apologize, but as the volume gets up and he is

          7  invading my space, and I just kind of know, I just

          8  feel the safety when I know the hospital police are

          9  standing behind me. And I want to contrast that with

         10  my experience briefly out of the Health and

         11  Hospitals system when I was working at a private

         12  hospital, well-known hospital on the upper east

         13  side, and patient went berserk, had come in, was on

         14  Angel Dust and in this crowded ER, stood on top of

         15  the stretcher and started throwing equipment, and we

         16  called for the hospital security officers and they

         17  came and three of them stood there and actually

         18  looked at this person, more afraid than I was. And

         19  at this point I said "what should we do?" And he

         20  said "call 911." And I have to tell you, I was

         21  embarrassed. I was on the phone, and the 911

         22  operator was saying, "Doctor, aren't there any

         23  security guards there?" And you could hear the

         24  screaming of this person in the background as he was

         25  throwing equipment, what would seem like five, ten
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          2  minutes, hospital police came charging in to get

          3  this guy. But what happened in that period is, the

          4  things that escalated. What we have is we have

          5  professional officers that are there. They

          6  de-escalate the situation. That is why you don't

          7  hear about the shootings in the emergency department

          8  and the violence, because they can stand up to the

          9  person and just talk them down, and it is something

         10  that you don't learn from one day or for a course

         11  for a week. It is something that you learn from ten

         12  years experience, and they kind of like, they just

         13  know which patients are going to give them a hard

         14  time and which aren't and I applaud them, and I say

         15  please, I hope you override if there is a veto. We

         16  really depending on the hospital police, and I want

         17  to thank them, and then you, also, for keeping us

         18  safe. Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: There are two

         20  more, but let me just say this. There is going to be

         21  a veto, because if the Administration on record

         22  opposes the bill, it will happen; however, that is

         23  why it is important that we take the time out to

         24  allow Council Members to understand the importance,

         25  and this is not about jobs, it is about protection
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          2  and health, and you name it.

          3                 So, we are ready. Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 Joseph Perry, and Frank Louden. If I

          6  mispronounced your name, I apologize. I know one is

          7  a detective, and I guess Joseph is a hospital police

          8  officer, but he didn't put his rank up but that is

          9  okay.

         10                 MR. PERRY: Captain.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Captain Joseph R.

         12  Perry.

         13                 Push your button.

         14                 CAPTAIN PERRY: Rank has its

         15  privileges.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Some places, yes;

         17  other places, I don't know.

         18                 CAPTAIN PERRY: I am here just simply

         19  to testify to the fact that the basic difference

         20  between private security and hospital police

         21  officers.

         22                 Hospital police officers are taught

         23  to observe, report, mediate and resolve. Private

         24  security, they are taught to report, observe and

         25  report, period. Which would you choose?
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          2                 When you go into an emergency room at

          3  2:00 in the morning, and you see a mother with a

          4  child, and she looks around and she sees a lot of

          5  homeless people, and she sees other people in the

          6  emergency room, she doesn't know anybody, she goes

          7  to the hospital police officer. She talks to them.

          8  She gets information.

          9                 Some of us go into the community,

         10  community outreach, we talk to the children in the

         11  schools. I spoke to some in some of the public high

         12  schools, I am in Queens, by the way, and the Queens

         13  network, we have had a good community relationship

         14  with the community advisory board, which sent a

         15  resolution to you guys, and I spoke at the community

         16  advisory board and they said there is so much that

         17  you guys do that we don't know about. And I said,

         18  well, we didn't know about you either.

         19                 What I am here just to say to you,

         20  and I want to thank you again, because there has

         21  only been a few bright lights in the last couple of

         22  months for the officers workers in the hospitals,

         23  one has been your committee, and the other has been

         24  the union.

         25                 The morale in the hospitals, for the
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          2  hospital police officers, has been very low, but

          3  coming here today, and I think I speak for the rank,

          4  we feel like we can go back and do our job

          5  efficiently, the way have been doing it, the way we

          6  have always done it. And I just want to say, because

          7  I am passionate about this, that when you talk about

          8  letting the hospital police officers go, or

          9  replacing them - we just lost the 25-year veterans,

         10  the 30 year veterans, and it is an injustice to

         11  those who have retired to say good-bye. That's all I

         12  have to say.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just say,

         14  if that was a question that you posed to this chair,

         15  I could only answer by saying the vote speaks for

         16  itself, so we already selected where we want to go.

         17                 CAPTAIN PERRY: Well, I was hoping I

         18  could have spoken before you voted.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, all right.

         20                 Sir.

         21                 DETECTIVE LOUDEN: Good morning,

         22  Chairman Robles, members of the Council, I want to

         23  thank you for allowing me to speak.

         24                 My name is Frank Louden, I am a

         25  Detective at Elmhurst Hospital, and on the job going
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          2  on 17 years, and talk about saving money for the

          3  City of New York, I was privy to testify at a

          4  lawsuit on behalf of the late Dr. Hernett. The

          5  family was suing the City of New York $33 million,

          6  and through our testimony, we prevailed in the suit,

          7  saving the City $33 million.

          8                 We do this on a constant basis where

          9  we are required to testify on behalf of the

         10  hospitals in certain litigations.

         11                 That's all I have to say. Thank you

         12  very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Let me say before I end, let me just

         16  say my colleague has joined us again, so call upon

         17  her to explain her vote and then I believe that it

         18  was nine nothing, right, so now it will be ten?

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Seven.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, seven.

         21                 Council Member Clarke, explain your

         22  vote.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Chairman.

         25                 I regret not being here to listen to
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          2  all of the testimony, but I didn't think I needed

          3  any convincing of where I stand on this issue, and

          4  because I believe in the hard work that the security

          5  force does at each of our municipal hospitals, the

          6  untenable situation of having a security guard who

          7  may be trained or may not be trained, we think we

          8  need a steady workforce, they have done it over the

          9  many years at risk to many of their lives from time

         10  to time, but certainly with dignity, and I stand

         11  solidly that we do not need to privatize the

         12  security at the municipal hospitals, and so I am

         13  pleased to vote aye, I am pleased to be a prime

         14  sponsor on it, because I know the work that they do,

         15  and are deserving of being in the system as part of

         16  the system, as any other professional within that

         17  hospital system.

         18                 I vote aye.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

         20  Council Member.

         21                 Let me just say, as a matter of fact

         22  the clerk came up, so you heard that vote, so now it

         23  is eight, right? Do you want to do it officially, or

         24  do you want her to sign it?

         25                 Anyway, it is eight for and none
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          2  against.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Seven in the

          4  affirmative, zero negative, zero abstentions. The

          5  item has been adopted.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, please sign

          7  the roll.

          8                 Let me just say this, Council Member

          9  Clarke, you apologized for being late, because you

         10  voted right, I am sure they all forgave you. So that

         11  to them is more important than whether you were

         12  late.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Mr.

         14  Chairman, I know you are going to have a wrap-up

         15  word, I just want you to know, I finished my

         16  assignment 25 times, hospital police officer.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me say this.

         18  I want to thank all of you who came out this

         19  morning, but, folks, I want to say something because

         20  this is but the beginning. There are ten months

         21  left, and right now, this Administration in its

         22  Preliminary Budget is proposing close to $25 million

         23  cuts into health services, so this is just the

         24  beginning of the next ten months, and until the end,

         25  you have to understand, folks, each of you live in,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            114

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  if it is true, within the City of New York, that

          3  each of you live within one of the 51

          4  Council districts, you cannot rely solely upon this

          5  Committee and this Chair, while I appreciate it, you

          6  have something that we all want, not for some of us

          7  who are what they call lame ducks, not dead ducks,

          8  though. But some are running for reelection, and

          9  others are running for other offices, and some of us

         10  are the sons and daughters of the communities that

         11  we are pleased to represent. But if you don't start

         12  flexing your muscles, not with me, not with this

         13  Committee, where you live, not where you work,

         14  because that is what power concedes nothing, it

         15  never has, it never will without demands or without

         16  struggles. And politicians, I said I hate that word,

         17  but I am going to use it, because I learned from a

         18  person called Shirley Chism, the first black woman

         19  who went to Congress, defined for me the difference

         20  between politicians and statespersons, a politician

         21  worries about the next election, which is my point.

         22  Each of you live somewhere and you better send a

         23  clear message that you ain't messing around with me

         24  and my job.

         25                 And for those of us who are
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          2  statespersons, we worry about the next generation.

          3  So, even though I don't know what the future holds

          4  for me, I would rather do my job now in the next ten

          5  months, because this is just the beginning. So,

          6  congratulations on a victory, but it didn't end with

          7  this vote. It began with this vote. And don't then

          8  go around saying, you know, that -- because power

          9  concedes nothing, it never has, it never will,

         10  without demands or without struggles.

         11                 Seeing no other business, and I thank

         12  all my colleagues for this vote of confidence today,

         13  I close this hearing.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 12:26 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.
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         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.
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         19  set my hand this 6th day of February 2001.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            117

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

